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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and carefu!l consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed
companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note
that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

This annual report, for which the directors of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited {the "Directors”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited. The
directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief.— (1) the information contained in this
annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement in this annual report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this annual report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company
Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC") on 29 March 2000
as a joint stock company with limited liability under the
PRC Company Law. In preparation for a listing of the
Company's H Shares on the Growth Enterprise Market
{"GEM"), a "Reorganization” was completed on 17 April
2000. The Company was listed on GEM on 27 July 2000
and became the first H Share listed on GEM. (Stock
Code: 8095)

Prior to “Reorganization”, the Company’'s operations in
the design and development of embedded technology
and embedded system products were carried out and
conducted by the Predecessor Entities of Jade Bird
Group, including Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Sci-
Tech Company Limited ("Beijing Tianqgiac”), Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Limited ("Jade Bird"), Beijing Beida Yu
Huan Microelectronics System Engineering Company {“Yu
Huan") and Beijing Beida Jade Bird Company Limited
Electric Instrument Branch, whose development received

the strong technological support of Peking University.

Currently, the Company is one of the leading software
developers and integrated circuit designers in the PRC
with expertise in developing software applications and
designing integrated circuits for embedded system
products. The Company is also engaged in the design,
manufacture, marketing, distribution and sale of five
different embedded
Application Specific Integrated Circuit ("ASIC"), Network

system products, namely,
Security Products, Smart Card Application System, GPS
Application System and Wireless Fire Alarm System
("WFAS™), all of which apply software and integrated
circuits developed through the Company's own research
and development.' The Company is also engaged in the
provision of total solutions to address the specific needs
of each customer through applications of its existing

embedded system products.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2000

Financial Highlights
B E
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RMB'000 2000 1999 1998
AR¥ T —REEE —hALE —ARINE
Turnover £ 60,843 10,419 3,029
Operating expenses reEBgH (36,293) (14,918) (7,851)
Profit (Loss) attributable RERELER (FE)

to shareholders 31,067 (4,486) (4,807)
Earnings (Loss) per share BREN (F18)

- basic (RMB cents) -BEX (AE¥7) 3.8 (0.64) (0.69)
Dividend per share BERRE

- (RMB cents) - (ARE¥7) 0.5 N/A N/A
Total assets HEE 386,800 26,299 15,595
Total liabilities R =K 15,493 14,920 2,338
Net assets FEE 371,307 11,379 13,257
Turnover (RMB’000) Net Profit (RMB'000)
EEB(AR®TT) BAFEHE (AR®TT)
70,000 60,843 35,000 31,067
60,000 -} 1 30,000 -} : ﬂ
50,000 — | 25,000 h
40,000 - 20,000 L
30,000 15,000 - H
20,000 - 10419 : 10,000 §
10‘000 | 3,029f/ : { ! | - 5,002 ] — 1 -4'4864T i ’ ’ J

i ‘ [ J
1998 1999 2000 5,000 ! B , L
1998 1999 2000
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Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Zhen Dong Chairman
Prof. Chen Zhong

Prof. Zhang Wan Zhong

Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang

Prof. Liu Yue

Non-Executive Directors

Prof. Yang Fu Qing
Prof. Wang Yang Yuan
Prof. Han Ru Qi

Mr. Xing Huan Lou

Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yong Ping
Prof. Nan Xiang Hao

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Yong Li
Mr. Li Chun

Mr. Fan Yi Min
Mr. Du Hong

Ms. Lu Qing

Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary

Ms. Calvinna Yang, AHKSA, FCCA

Hong Kong Share Registrar &
Transfer Office

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
2nd Floor, Vicwood Plaza

199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

n

Legal Address

Rooms 1117/1119
Zhongcheng Building
Haidian Road

Beijing 100080

PRC

Principal place of business in the PRC

Room 1715, Corporate Square
35 Financial Street

Xi Cheng District

Beijing 100032

PRC

Tel: (86) 10 6275-1795

Fax: (86) 10 6275-8434

Place of business in Hong Kong

Unit 02, 7th Floor
Asia Pacific Centre

8 Wyndham Street
Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2521-1668
Fax : (852) 2521-1669

Website of the Company

www.china-jbu.com

Auditors

Arthur Andersen & Co
Certified Public Accountants
21st Floor, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen's Road Central

Hong Kong
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Major Events
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2000
29th March

The Company was incorporated in the Peaple's Republic

of China as a joint stock company with limited liability.

17th April

Through restructuring the business of our predecessor
entities, the Company completed a “reorganization” for

issuing shares.

6th June

A branch office was set up in the High & New Technology
Industry Park in Shenzhen.

23rd June

JB-FWI (Jade Bird Gateway Firewall |) passed the security
testing and authentication of the Ministry of Public

Security and obtained sales approval.

3rd - 4th July

The Company held IPO presentation in Hong Kong and
PO roadshow in Singapore.

27th July

The Company was publicly listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited by issuing 24,000,000 H Shares at HK$ 11.00 per
share and raised funds of HK$264,000,000.

10th August

The Company was admitted as a constituent stock of
the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index by HSI Services
Limited.
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Major Events
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14th August

The Company announced its interim results. Turnover
was RMB15,665,741, representing a growth of 8.2 times
over the corresponding period of last year. Net profit
was RMB?,382,798.

15th August

Through the exercise of the over-allotment option in
respect of 2,400,000 zdditional H Shares at HK$11.00
per share, the Company raised additional funds of
HK$26,400,000.

8th October

China State Cryptography Control Authority Office
("CSCCAQ") authorized the Company as a designated

manufacturer of commercial cryptographic products.

11th October

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Tech (Cayman) Development Company Limited, was

formally incorporated.

18th October

"SSP0O1 Encryption Algorithm Chip” was examined and
approved by CSCCAO for production.

11th — 18th November

The Company launched the European roadshow in
France, Germany, ltaly, Switzerland and the United

Kingdom.

15th November

The Company announced its third quarterly results.
Turnover was RMB29,775,912, representing a quadrupled
growth over the corresponding period of last year. Net
profit was RMB16,351,571.
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Major Events
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28th November

It was resolved at a special general meeting and a H
Share class meeting respectively that each of the
Promoters’ Shares and H Shares with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each be subdivided intc ten Promoters’ Shares
and H Shares with a nominal value of RMB0.10 each

respectively.

11th December

CSCCAO also approved the Company to develop
“SJY01-A Data Encryption Card” and integrate the
examined “SSPO1 Encryption Algorithm Chip” on the

card.
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Chairman’s Statement

E B

To all Shareholders,

The Year 2000 was a year of significant growth for us.
Through corporate reorganization, we have received
investments from strategic investors and raised funds

from the international capital market.

With the embedded system technology developed by
Peking University, the Company's operating philosophy
hinges on “talent-based, core technology and product
backup”. Prior to the reorganization, our proprietary
embedded technology was not widely recognized in the
market. Through the sustained efforts of our
management, research and development personnel as
well as sales personnel, our embedded products are now
readily recognized by the market in the PRC. Our
trademark “Jade Bird Universal” has also been
successfully registered. We will try to establish the
trademark as a brand name and a quality benchmark of
embedded system products with exceptional quality.

In October 2000, we were approved by the China State
Cryptography Control Authority Office ("CSCCAQ") as a
designated commercial cryptographic product
manufacturer, which we believe is a recognition of our
advantages and status in the production technology and
development of the commercial cryptographic products.
Last year, our "SSP0O1 Encryption Algorithm Chip” also
passed the trials and accreditation of CSCCAQO for
production, which is an official recognition of our
outstanding achievement in the research and
development of specific security integrated circuits
(“ICs"). Leveraged upon our distinct advantages and
experience in encryption technology, CSCCAOQ also
approved our proposal to research and develop “SJY01-
A Data Encryption Card” and to apply our accredited
"SSPQ1 Encryption Algorithm Chip” on the card.

These approvals are recognitions of our accomplishments
in the research and development of netwerk security and

ASIC products, and further increase our confidence in

this area.
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In January 2001, the State Intellectual Property Bureau
awarded the Company an “Invention Patent Certificate”
for our anti-hacker network security technology. Our
invention is considered as not only a major advancement
in network security technology, but it also enhances our
position in the research and development of specific

network security products.

This year, we commenced the adoption of the Wireless
Fire Alarm System ("WFAS”) in urban areas, which is a
change in application of this technology from
government departments to commercialization. Our fire
alarm and monitoring systems have passed the
examination of the State Testing Centre and are currently
Our “Hainan Jade Bird

Safeguard Fire Alarm and Monitor Technologies” project

being used in local regions.

has laid down the foundation of the concept of wireless
fire alarm system. Encouraged by the emphasis of the
PRC government on the “double backup” of fire alarm
system, we believe that WFAS will set a new trend for

the demand of fire alarm products.

In conclusion, we believe that the on-going innovation
and creation of our research and development team has
achieved advancement and remarkable performance in
the embedded technology. Currently, we have 120
personnel in the research and development and expect
to expand our research and development team for further

development in technology.

To make the Company a technology and market leader
of the PRC in the field of the information security
industry, the management intends to seek extensive
international technological collaboration with institutions
and businesses in Germany, the United Kingdom,
Canada, India, Japan and other countries in order to
secure better returns for shareholders, investors and the

Company in the flourishing information market.

XU ZHEN DONG
Chairman
Beijing, the PRC, 28th March, 2001
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial review

The audited consolidated turnover of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2000 amounted to
RMB60,843,000, representing an increase of
RMB50,424,000, or a growth of 4.8 times over 1999.

The Group's profit attributable to shareholders and
earnings per share for the year ended 31st December,
2000 were RMB31,067,000 and RMB3.8 cents respectively,

turning loss in previous year to profit this year.

As at 31st December, 2000, the Group had net working
capital of approximately RMB361,425,000, of which
RMB327,469,000 was cash.

For the year ended 31st December, 2000, approximately
22% and 78% of the revenue were derived from the sales
of embedded system products and the provision of total

solution services respectively.

Business Review
GPS Application System

In addition to the renewal of the existing engineering
project with Sichuan Tianmu Monitor & Security Systems
Co. Ltd., the Company has successfully secured a
contract with Beijing InterCar Network Technoclogy Ltd.
These two control centre projects have contributed a
total revenue of approximately RMB22,563,000, a 137.4
times increase over last year. The box unit of the GPS
application system for vehicles is expected to be ready

for installation and testing in 2001 at which times the

corresponding revenue will materialize accordingly.
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Management Discussion
g E B F =W

Network Security Products

Network security is one of the major focuses in
developing the network industry. The Company is one
of the few designated commercial encryption product
manufacturers accredited by CSCCAO. Commercial
network security product is now the second largest
source of revenue for the Company depicting a
noticeable rising trend. In 2000, the revenue derived from
this segment amounted to RMB22,043,000, an increase
of 2.6 times over last year. Given our unique proprietary
technology and market position, we believe a sustained

growth in the related revenue will continue.

Wireless Fire Alarm System ("WFAS”)

In 2000, the revenue derived from our WFAS amounted
to RMB6,621,000, an increase of 5.4 times over last year.
The urban WFAS products designed and installed for
Hainan Jade Bird Safeguard Firefighting Alarm & Monitor
Technologies Co. Ltd. have already become an industry
benchmark. The marketing of WFAS products will be

extended to other provinces and cities in the PRC.

ASIC Products

ASIC products have always been the centre of attention
in the information technology industry. The Company'’s
ASIC products have become fully fledged from previous
year's research and development phase of rudimentary
products and achieved a revenue of RMB6,287,000 in
2000, an increase of 8.2 times over last year. In view of
the huge potential market demand in the PRC coupled
with our proprietary technology and its application in
network security, the Company believes that ASIC
products will mature over time in line with the special

features of the PRC market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Smart Card Application Systems

Since smart card application systems products have been
widely accepted and used, competition is relatively
intense amongst suppliers. However, benefited from the
Company’s origin in tertiary education institutions and
close relationship with our peers as well as the practicality
in the concept of “One Card for Campus Services”
project, the revenue derived from smart card application
systems reached RMB3,329,000, an increase of 0.3 times
over last year. At present, the Company has completed
the design and installation of smart card application
systems in a number of middle schools and universities.
It provides an alternative payment method for the
younger generation. In addition, our smart card
application systems have been also applied by a number
of government authorities such as the China State
Statistics Department, the China State Planning
Committee and the Ministry of Finance, which broadened

our customer base in the application of this product.

Outlook

Since March 2000, the information technology industry
has been under enormous impact and is undergoing a
period of consolidation. In face of the ever-intense
competition, the Company leveraged its proprietary
technology and employee dedication in achieving a

satisfactory result during a very tough year.

In the coming year, the Company will continue to
strengthen its research and development team by
increasing its number from 120 to 180. Meanwhile, the
Company will establish a technology research centre and
a sales and distribution centre in Beijing and recruit
experienced sales personnel to spearhead the

introduction of our proprietary embedded system

products into the market.

E &

o 1 e, |

BEFEBAESR

BHFERAZSESRABSCEIHEELE
ATEMREA B BAFERERE
HOTBERBTRAMA AWM BEEL
AREEABFNRAENERRFBEE
URIBRE-FRIBRENHBSER —F
ZEFRBERATEE ARY3,329,000
TREFBROIE-ABEQLAERZMH
FERARBRIREZEETHHFERR
SoATENF -KEHRTE-ENGIR
EX-AS c0anNBBEFEARZ T
CEAFBRSHBD BFRABEIS U
BREERTHREBOBEITP HIHE
BT HAVERFEE-

RERE

EERRTER-_ETEFZAMB—E
FEEA+HER YEEATEERR -BY
BEANTEHEFRB - FA2FABREAENEER
R SEINSH EREN—FE D
REETRIFNEE

EAR—F FOASEBEMARRBEE
BERERN-—EBE-tTABHE-ENLTA-
B AAETEEAELROEMFAR
ROMEEBRBIL EREEBRNHEE
AB BELRABENBRARNERREGE
B b @ i e

TANNUAL REPORT 2000 & |13

IR VR P A

T Compray Lo




Management Discussion and Analysis

g E B F W

The establishment of a research and development centre
in Shenzhen will be one of the Company's key
development project in the coming year. We will actively
coordinate with the relevant government authorities in
securing a more favourable site for development as well
as capitalising upon the various talents concentrated in
Shenzhen to speed up the construction of the centre in

Shenzhen.

To integrate the research and development of
commercial cryptographic technology with the anti-
hacker network security gateway developed by us in 2000,
we are committed to drive the development and
improvement as well as commercialisation of our
embedded products and elevate the further
advancement of the information network industry in the

PRC.

As both the government and business sectors are placing
increasing emphasis on urban wireless fire alarm systems,
the Company will proactively research and develop
various types of WFAS tailored for the characteristics
and requirements of different regions. The Company aims
to explore new market and set a new milestone in fire

prevention and security.

With China's imminent entry into the World Trade
Organization, the information technology industry in the
PRC has to meet international challenges. Aside from
the continued endeavour in the research and
development, the Company will seek cooperation with
strategic partners and investors. The Sino-German joint
venture contract to be executed in Shanghai by the
Company for design, production and distribution of
network security products and provision of maintenance
and after-sales services in the second quarter of 2001
set an encouraging pace for the efforts. The estimated
investment amount to be contributed by the Company
is approximately RMBé6 million. The management will
continue to pursue new opportunities in order to increase

profits and returns for the Company.
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Executive directors

Mr. Xu Zhen Dong, aged 36, is an executive Director
and the Chairman of the board of Directors of the
Company. Mr. Xu is responsible for the Company’s overall
strategic planning, corporate formulation and financial
strategies. In 1987, Mr. Xu graduated from the Computer
Science and Technology Department of Peking University.
Mr. Xu is a director and the general manager of Jade
Bird and the chairman and authorised representative of
Beijing Tiangiao. Mr. Xu joined the Jade Bird Group in
November 1994 and subsequently joined the Company
in March 2000.

Prof. Chen Zhong, aged 37, is an executive Director and
the president of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall technology, product research and development
of the Company. Prof. Chen graduated from the
Computer Science and Technology Department of Peking
University with a doctorate degree in computer science
and technology in 1989. Prof. Chen participated in the
research and development of the State focal science and
technology project relating to "Software Engineering
Environment Jade Bird System” Since 1995, Prof. Chen
has been principally engaged in the research of network
and information security system, software domain-specific
software engineering, etc. Prof. Chen participated in
certain State's research subjects including “Internet
security technology and strategy research”, "Internet
information automatic search and recognition
technology”, “Internal network security system” and the
State torch project of “Regional banking and financial
network security”. Prof. Chen received awards including
the State’s Science and Technology Achievement Award
of Youth in 1996, the Special Awards in Advancement of
Science and Technology by the Ministry of Electronic
Industry, the Second Awards in the State's Science and
Technology Advancement in 1998. Prof. Chen is also a
director of Jade Bird and Beijing Tiangiao. Prof. Chen
joined the Jade Bird Group in November 1994 and
subsequently joined the Company in March 2000.
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Executive directors (Cont'd)

Prof. Zhang Wan Zhong, aged 37, is an executive
Director and vice president of the Company. He is
primarily responsible for the overall administration,
corporate matters and public relations of the Company.
Prof. Zhang graduated from Peking University with a
master’s degree in science. Prof. Zhang held various
positions in the administrative arm of Peking University
including the vice superintendent of the Remote Sensing
and Geographic Information System Department of
Peking University which is responsible for the State’s focal
science and technology project relating to key problem’s
solving. He was the authorised representative and
general manager of Peking University Science Information
Technology Company. Prof. Zhang joined the Jade Bird
Group in October 1998 and subsequently joined the
Company in March 2000.

Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang, aged 35, is an executive Director and
vice president of the Company. He is responsible for
the Company's sales and marketing in the PRC. Mr. Xu
graduated from Peking University with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science and technology specialising
in software and subsequently cbtained a master's degree
in software engineering and computer science from
Software Research Centre of the Science Institute of the
PRC. Mr. Xu is also the director and general manager of
Beijing Tiangiao and Beida Jade Bird Commercial
Information System Company Limited. Mr. Xu joined the
Jade Bird Group in November 1994 and subsequently
joined the Company in March 2000.
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Executive directors (Cont'd)

Prof. Liu Yue, aged 38, is an executive Director and vice
president of the Company. She is responsible for product
research and development and corporate relations of
the Company. She is an expert in IC design and ICCAD.
She was awarded the Second Prize of Technological
Achievement in Beijing and the Antai Prize of Peking
University. She is currently the general manager of Yu
Huan. Prof. Liu joined the Jade Bird Group in June 1996
and subseqguently joined the Company in March 2000.

Non-executive Directors

Prof. Yang Fu Qing, aged 67, a famous computer expert,
is a non-executive Director. She is a fellow of the Science
Institute of the PRC and a professor of the Information
and Engineering Department of Peking University. Prof.
Yang has over 40 years of experience in the research of
process automation and system software. She has
developed the operation system of the first computer
made in the PRC and the first PRC's operation system
using pure high level computer language. Owing to her
great achievement in scientific research, Prof. Yang
received numerous honorary awards, such as the Second
Awards in State's Advancement of Technology in 1998,
the Special Award in Advancement of Technology by the
Ministry of Electronic Industry in 1996, the First Prize of
Technological Achievement from Guanghua Technology
Fund and the “He Liang-He Li" Fund-Advancement of
Science and Technology in 1997. Prof. Yang has nurtured
more than 100 graduate and doctorate students. She
has published more than 70 thesis and é publications.
Prof. Yang is the chairman of Jade Bird Software and
Jade Bird. Prof. Yang is the wife of Prof. Wang Yang
Yuan. Prof. Yang joined the Jade Bird Group in November
1992 and subsequently joined the Company in March
2000.
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Non-executive Directors {Cont'd)

Prof. Wang Yang Yuan, aged 65, a famous
microelectronics expert, is a non-executive Director. Prof.
Wang, is a fellow of the Science Institute of the PRC and
a professor and head of the Institute of Microelectronics
of Peking University. Prof. Wang specializes in the
research of microelectronics and has successfully
developed PRC's first piece of three-type 1024 bit
MOSDRAM. He is recognised as one of the major
explorers of gate terminal N channel technology. In the
research of polysilicon chips, Prof. Wang introduced
stress enhanced oxidation model for thin polysilicon film
oxidation, feature parameter and engineering application
formula and has recently commenced research in new
structure circuit and MEMS, circuit simulation of CMOS/
SOl circuit, etc. Prof. Wang was awarded at the national
and departmental levels including the Pan Wenyuan
Certificate, the National Science Society Award, the
National Invention Award, and the First Prize of
Technological Achievement from the National Teaching
Committee. Prof. Wang has nurtured dozens of gradaute,
doctorate and post-doctorate students and published
more than 150 thesis and 20 publications. Prof. Wang is
a director and the chief consultant of Jade Bird. Prof.
Wang is the husband of Prof. Yang Fu Qing. Prof. Wang
joined the Jade Bird Group in December 1994 and

subsequently joined the Company in March 2000.
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Non-executive Directors (Cont'd)

Prof. Han Ru Qi, aged 61, is a non-executive Director.
Prof. Han is a professor and tutor of doctorate students
of Peking University. Prof. Han was awarded the National
Special Prize in the Second Annual National High School
Excellent Teaching Publication Competition in 1992 and
the Second Prize of State Technological Achievement in
1996. He is currently a standing committee member of
the National Political Consultative Conference, member
of Minge Beijing Chief Committee, vice chairman of the
Beijing Political Consultative Conference and standing
committee member of the Central Cultural Reform

Committee. Prof. Han joined the Company in March 2000.

Mr. Xing Huan Lou, aged 51, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Xing studied in Beijing Economics Institute and State
Social Science Post-Graduate Institute. He was the chief
economist of the Beijing City Planning Committee. Mr.
Xing joined Beijing Integrated Investment Company since
May 1997 and has been its general manager and
authorised representative. He is currently also the vice-
chairman of Jade Bird. Mr. Xing joined the Jade Bird
Group in November 1994 and subsequently joined the
Company in March 2000.

Mo E B oz & 4.

FBITESE (B

BHBEIE OB FHUTEB-LmRE
HE - BLEEBM-BE-NN_-FRES
—EEZESREFHMTEERRESE
B UWR-—ANANERERIRES-ZE
RB-RAFZEARBERE - REILTRMER
ZE2 LZTHBREER REPREZE-
BHER-EZEZE-_AMALRRQT-

MEEgEE 518 FPTES-MEEE
RUEFERESZR TEEESHERTEE
RS BREEERDHEEEEREE
Me-MEER—NNAEERAMALRD
RERELR LETHAKTEREERR
AES-FERTBERNEZIFE-MEER
—MhAEE+-SMATSRER HER
ZEEZEF=ZAMAFAF-




5 E
T ST te. - SN o

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

B =E

—_——
=i .

% E #®

P

Non-executive Directors (Cont'd)

Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon, aged 45, is a non-executive
Mr.

Administration degree. He possesses over 20 years of

Director. Lo holds a Bachelor of Business
experience in the financial, securities and futures
industries. He has been a member of the CME and IMM
since 1986. Mr. Lo is the chairman of Asia Logistics
Technologies Limited, and the deputy chairman of Tai
Fook Securities Group Limited and New World
CyberBase Limited. He is also an executive director of
Asean Resources Holdings Limited, The Kwong Sang
Hong International Limited and Pacific Ports Company
Limited, all of which are companies whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo joined the Company
in March 2000.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yong Ping, aged 65, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the audit committee
of the Company. Prof. Liu graduated from the Faculty of
National Politics of the People's University of China. Prof.
Liu was the editor of “Frontier” magazine. Prof. Liu was
the deputy head and researcher of Beijing Social Science
Institute. Prof. Liu is currently the deputy chief editor of
“Research on the Special Characteristics of Socialism in
the PRC". Prof. Liu was appointed as an independent

non-executive Director in March 2000.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Cont'd)

Prof. Nan Xiang Hao, aged 64, is an independent non-
executive Director. Prof. Nan is currently a part-time
professor in the graduate school of the University of
Science & Technology of China. Prof. Nan was previously
a supervisor of The Third Information Cryptology
Commisscry of The Chinese Computer Association. Prof.
Nan was awarded various science award such as the
Second Prize of State Technological Achievement. Prof.
Nan was appointed as an independent non-executive

Director in March 2000.

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Yong Li, aged 35, is chairman of the
Company's supervisory committee. He graduated from
the Geology Department of Peking University with a
bachelor's degree in Geology and subsequently obtained
a doctorate degree in science from Chinese Science
University. Mr. Zhang held various positions in the Jade
Bird Group mainly in the areas of accounting and
administration and was appointed deputy general
manager and head of accounting department of Jade
Bird since November 1998. Mr. Zhang joined the Jade
Bird Group in November 1994 and subsequently joined
the Company in March 2000.

Mr. Fan Yi Min, aged 41, is @ Supervisor. Mr. Fan
graduated from Hangzhou University with a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese language. He worked in Zhejiang
Provincial Committee in 1982 and Zhejiang Foreign Trade
Company in 1991. Mr. Fan joined the Jade Bird Group
in August 1998 and is currently a vice president of Jade

Bird. He joined the Company in March 2000.
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Supervisors (Cont'd)

Mr. Li Chun, aged 32, is a Supervisor and a research
supervisor of the Company. He graduated with a
bachelor's degree in electronics and communication from
the Department of Information Engineering System of
Peking University. After his graduation, he remained in
the university to engage in the development of electronic
products. In February 1995, Mr. Li joined Jade Bird Group
and was appointed head of Mechan-engineering
Unification Research Centre, deputy general manager of
Beida Jade Bird Electronics Group and Beida Jade Bird
Information Project Limited which are responsible for the
development and organisation of electronic and
information products.
Company in March 2000.

He subsequently joined the

Mr. Du Hong, aged 47, is an independent Supervisor.
He is currently a member of the gualification assessment
committee of the State's Office senior engineering
technology, a member of the assessment committee of
the State's Science and Technology Advancement Award
and a member of the strategic research expert committee
of the State's “Eight, Six, Three” Plan relating to
information security technology development. He was a

senior engineer of the State Cryptography Research
Centre. He joined the Company in March 2000.

Ms. Lu Qing, aged 35, is an independent Supervisor.
Ms. Lu graduated from Peking University with a bachelor’s
degree in econcmics and subsequently obtained a
master’s degree in economics and politics. In 1996, Ms
Lu obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from HEC School of Management in Paris, France. Ms.
Lu has extensive experience in investment consulting.

She joined the Company in March 2000.
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Senior Management

Ms. Calvinna Yang, aged 30, is the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of the Company. She has 9
years of experience in management accounting, public
accounting, taxation and financial management in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Ms. Yang holds a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Yang joined the
Company in April 2000.

Ms. Zhu Qing, aged 38, is a marketing manager and a
vice president of the Company. In 1982, she graduated
from the Radio Frequency Electronics Department of
Peking University specialising in electronic physics. Ms.
Zhu was awarded the Certificate of Excellent Project
relating to computer application development Ms. Zhu
joined the Jade Bird Group in December 1998 and
subsequently joined the Company in March 2000.
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Senior Management (Cont'd)

Mr. Duan Yun Suo, aged 32, is a research manager and
a vice president of the Company. He obtained a
doctorate in medicine engineering of Zhejiang University.
He carried out post-doctorate research in the Computer
Science and Technology Department of Peking University.
Since 1997, he was associate professor of the Computer
Science and Technology Department of Peking University.
Mr. Duan has extensive experience in research and
development of network and information security and
communication. Mr. Duan joined the Jade Bird Group in
January 1996 and subsequently joined the Company in
March 2000.

Mr. Zhang Jun, aged 37, is a vice president of the
Company. He is responsible for the manufacture, sales
and marketing of GPS application system and WFAS
products. Mr. Zhang graduated from Peking University
with a bachelor's degree in law and subsequently
obtained a master's degree in investment management

from the economics department of the Science Institute

of the PRC. Mr. Zhang has been engaged in international

trade and corporate management for years. Mr. Zhang
joined Jade Bird Group in October 1998 and
subsequently joined the Company in March 2000.
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Comparison of the Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress
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Business Objectives as stated in the
Prospectus up to the end of 31st
December, 2000
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1. Embedded Systems
1. BAXREH S

1.1 Software
1.1 B

Conduct feasibility study and finalise

research and development
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Establish a small scale experimental
model of reusable embedded system

software library
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Actual business progress up to the end
of 31st December, 2000
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Based on the analysis and study of the
application of embedded systems, the Company
has completed an evaluation on the instruction
processing system for developing embedded
software, and confirmed the development
platform of embedded software. The Company
will continue to develop and improve the quality
of existing products so as to cope with market
requirements.
ERRETRTREARRSBHTERSAAEMNE
BE ZERTHRAXBGBREARENESESN
e UEETRADNBRGBRFE -THER L.
SEEN—RIBARNEREERE - EAMREF
WEEMDSER-

Given the rapid development of embedded
software, more time is needed to examine and
adjust the development platform. Hence, the
Company has decided to defer the plan to the
second quarter of 2001.

HRBRARXBRGONERE Z DA FESEFEA
HREPEREFTE TBRABRAXNRSFEENEZ D
REARED BERE_ZEF -—FLXFHET-
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1.2
1.2

1.2.1
1.2.1

1.2.2
1.2.2

Ty

2 OB
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B &
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Hardware

&

Embedded microprocessor

BANMEESE

Commence core technology study and

complete system logic design

HRZLRIBIAR  TRRTRFBEBRT

Complete programming language

conversion compiler
ETREAEEERRES

Hardware — ASIC
HANAE

Conduct research and development of
Barrel Shifter, D/A, SRAM, ALU, etc.

MEE B TRIER -D/A - SRAM ~ ALUEE
TiFE: T4k

26 ANNUALREROET-2 0O 0E|
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The Company has been engaged consistently in

core technology study and completed
technological research on system level low
power consumption and system logic design.
The Company has also conducted research on
testability techniques, and proceeded research
on the design of RAM, ROM and ALU and
technology of digital integrated circuit.

QAR —ERBRRZORMAR RETR TEEE
BERAGEMNARNESEENRT YRMAETAMER
MREITRAS - F AR E T RRAM » ROM ~ ALUZRET A

BIEEREERI-

The Company has completed programming
language conversion compiler and software
modulator.

ERAFSEERERESFREBRRMGARAIA-

The Company has continued the research and
development of Barrel Shifter, D/A, SRAM, ALU,
etc. Certain technical issues with the design on
key parts have been resolved.

TR REMEETHEHTBNTRERE -D/A-
SRAM ~ ALUSRETE: T /& BER BN 0 ORRET R £
BT &R
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2.7
2.1

2.2
2.2

Products Development
EmER

Security I1Cs
Z22EH

Complete circuit design of 2nd generation

Security ICs and commence feasibility

study on 3rd generation Security [Cs

EREZRRETFZERRTRFARE=S
REERF 2T HEHEIFE

Network Security Products
HER2ER

The Company's security tunnel technology
has achieved remarkable result, which

includes:

Develop security tunnel technology

EREZZEERN

£ % B R Z BB

The research, development and design of
Security ICs have proceeded smoothly. The
Company has already completed the circuit
design of the 2nd generation Security [Cs, and
conducted feasibility study on the 3rd generation
Security ICs in response to market requirements.
RECHRERRTHEIRITERVBREBIER -
BERALEERBE-RZEDF2BBRT A
FEMRMRE=RZECHZATHEREIF
LUBRE T HER-

FELAFEBRERTEEERM S TEENRE
HhB4E:

Mail filtering system: The Company has instzlled
the system for the Public Security Department
of Jiangsu Province and made improvement and
testing with respect to the technical problems
encountered. The Company has also conducted
function and performance testing, and reviewed
development documents.
BEBEAMK AR AIHEALTERRETEHY
BERS REBESHNEMEER MTE-—FPHXK
EARIE - tESh BT T iR R BB IEAE
B AR o

[ANNUAL REPORT RO &% |27
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2.2 Network Security Products (Cont'd) JB-FW gateway firewall: The Company has
22 RrRREZERH improved VPN tunnel to enhance handling
efficiency, and updated algorithm library to
improve operating interfaces, such as increasing
configuration downloading, time modification
and other functions, eliminated errors exposed
in the process of applications.
JB-FWHIBERE A QM EVPNEBET T o
- REERBEXN= BRENEEEE NERENTE-

N MENEBETEH KBERS ZRAFERBRES '
— BIRWERR-

The Company has adopted various methods in
the research and development of encryption and
decryption based on Windows platform. In
respect of the SJYO1-A encryption card, the
Company has developed drivers on platforms
of Free BSD, Linux, Windows NT and conducted
small batch manufacture. The products have won
favourable comments from certain enterprises
after installation. According to the problems
raised by the customers, the Company has made
some modifications in drivers and hardware to
improve their functions.

ERWindows¥ & By INAE % R 2 - FESIYO1-AMNE F
FEFEMR T Free BSD ~ Linux * Windows NTEF¥ &
THRESHENME WET T I MHERICEE-ZE
GEETFTLEHRE S THL AREFFRSY
HNEEEESERANBEHLET THE FERM

BEEEMNTEE-

28 | ANNUAL-BERPOBRT-RO000) &% |
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2.2 Network Security Products (Cont'd) Regarding line encryption equipment, the

22 PRrzE2ER (&) Company has completed modulation together
with the German developer and realized the
basic functions. With further improvements, the
product is expected to pass the security
inspection and put to production in the first
quarter of year 2001.
EENMEEIFE TR THEFNBEALERTE
Ape - LY HENBBEEST THE BitE=2
E-FEZEVEBBZRESANERLLLEE-

For SZD02 Bank Terminal Certificate Authority,
the Company has completed hardware design
and driver development on Windows platform.
As its performance has reached the expected
requirements, the product is expected to pass
the security inspection and put to production in
the first quarter of year 2001.
SZDO2IRITHR WA FTAHE TR T EAREA
WindowsF B THIEEN RN B HEED THRM
ER-BAAE-ZEE—FE - FEUBERERE2EE
MEDRLEE-

For JB56 Encryption Card, the Company has
accelerated the encryption speed and improved
the driver's program.
BSOEBFAE-ES T BB FNNBERELR
ETEDER

LANNUAL-RERPORT-B 0 05 ] 29
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2.3
2.3

Smart Card Application System
REAFERALS

Research and develop smart card

networking application system

TERBRBEFEKEARR

Improve smart card POS application

system
HRIEBEFPOSERER

Develop smart card multiple application

system (e.g. access control and point of

sale / cafeteria)

ERBAFZAZER (NBEEFREE
BREEITERE)

Continue research and develop smart card

logistics management system

BETERBBRRAFTYRERRASR

30 [ ANNUAL REPORT -2 000 & |
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The Company has launched a full-scale
engagement in the research and development
of existing application systems as well as the
design and manufacture of comprehensive
products.
AAREHAFNEASTEEIESERE2AURE
B E-—SHRIBRERENERRS RETLRE
HEHEBRWEREER-

The Company has conducted standard design
on financial smart card.
LR EMBAREFETTEELIR.

The Company has developed smart card network
entrance system, and implemented smart card
network entrance system in several enterprises
for trial application.

FLBHET THRAFAZSHARS LEBEEHA
BHEFEASLTEDDEHET-

The Company has applied smart card access
control system in apartment access control
management and installed the system in the
guesthouses of Peking University. Concerning
IC card control on device management, the
Company has made further tests and
applications.

FERBHERFEERSEANLAEAMEEE,
YHRASEZERLEZTARERBNABEERA R
HEAFEREEERNEMET TEATENR

BBFHEL-
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24  GPS Application System
24 GPSEHZS

GPS

application system in special types of vehicle

Conduct requirement analysis for

FEEEHAGCPSERRAETRIESN

Commence hardware and software design for
GPS application system tailored for anti-theft,
anti-movement, anti-route-diversion and time

control of vehicle movement

BGPSERALZRMUMA REFRITTHF BED
AUBEREBENR B (REE R SR ES e

Conduct research and analysis on 3rd generation
GPS Application System JB-350M

WERDTINE=NRGPSER R JB-350M

= B B R Z

The Company has completed system analysis for
GPS application system in special types of
vehicles, such as bank vehicle, and GSM, GPS,
GIS public network construction.
GPSEARGKFE AR EMBTRISER (1E
$E) GPSERRESMNAS DM THGSM » GPS
GISREFREZK-

The Company has conducted hardware and
software design for GPS Application System
tailored for anti-theft, positioning, dispatching,
time control and other functions; established
GSM, GPS and GIS dispatching systems for
automobiles in Beijing; and completed technical
preparations for the construction of public
network and system integration at Beijing
frequency. The Company is likely to gain a larger
market share for these products .

TLRIBERTGPSEARASNEGREANRIT
feE-CEHBEE-EN-BE - SEZHEETTHE
TR LECEERBISAREERTRERA
GSM~ GPS~ GISHWIAERS REMRTHEBRIER
BENAERASREARERNRMNERS TER
EXNTHEELIREE-—F2ithe

With the improvement in GPS technology and
the overall quality of the research and
development team, the Company has conducted
pre-study on the 3rd generation GPS Application
System JB-350M.

AT TEERNGPSAERM  MBHA R ABBRE
EE UWHE=AGPSERRAIB-IOMEITTHE
fiff e

e
ttiiﬁi?%ﬁ&fﬁ?"}?ﬁ;'ﬁﬁﬁﬁi’?
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2.5
2.5

WFAS
ERUBRERS

Conduct testing and internal review (2nd
generation WFAS)
REIREREFHREBRAFETIAERA
BRI

Conduct feasibility study on 2nd
generation WFAS through incorporation
of ASIC technology into existing system

FEBBASICRMRBEFTAKLES RE=K
BEHFRERARETUITIHEAER

Commence study of 3rd generation WFAS

ERFZRESHBRERA TR

Commence study for the application of
WFAS in ancient buildings and large scale
scenic garden
RETERFREAEEAMNERESUBRE
FRRBAMARIE

Start requirement analysis of WFAS for use

in general household security

R—BRARREREZEGSHBRERS
FRE TN

32 ANNUAL REPGRT 2000 &4 |
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The Company has conducted testing and internal
review on the 2nd generation WFAS system.
AR ERBE_RBREBRERAFETIER
AEER -

The Company has conducted feasibility study
on the 2nd generation WFAS and proceeded to
start the feasibility study on applying ASIC
technology.
FRARECRENERUFBRERGET TR
W IERAREEASICHEM M AT

The Company has commenced research on the
3rd generation WFAS system and completed the
design on control circuit.
AR CRRBEREREHNBRERANZHRL
EREHHBOERNRE

The Company has commenced the study for
application of WFAS in the Summer Palace,
ancient buildings and large-scale scenic gardens.
FAATRCHRRANETEEFTFRAEENERAERHE
FHRERGCRBARIE-

The Company has completed the analysis on
using WFAS technologies in ancient buildings
and prepared for further application of the
system on household security. Some preliminary
work has been prepared for project
implementation this year.
AREARDHAFNARETERFNRERWEEHZ
BINREZ2FTH ATSTFIRRENERER
WA ATHASE S -
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3. Production
3. £ FE

3.1 Security I1Cs
3.1 ZE2E2HH

Commence packaging of 1st generation The Company has completed packaging of

ICs 12,000 pieces of the generation Security ICs and
testing on 1,000 pieces of Security Cs. The
Company has continued the manufacture and
testing of Security ICs, improved the testing
system and overall quality of Security ICs, and
made preparations to bid for other projects.

MEE - RS FHEHE ERBFERRE—REZE2HH12000F WEHER
1,000 WARER - BERERFNEEINA
HOREZEERANARRAR - E-SESERE
B ATHARHAMIEHBERERREMREE
e

3.2 Network Security Products
32 HEBERZEZE®

Commence trial production of application  The Company has commenced the production

label security control mechanism of application label security control mechanism
such as exit certificate and electrical stamps.

HEAEREASEESHE FAFERUEASH T2 EHEAULBERE -
FTINESHBEE-

[ ANNUAL BEPGRT = (0)(0)(0) 4248 | 33
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3.2 Network Security Products (Cont’d)
32 HEBEZER (A

Continue production of existing Network

Security Products

BESTEREHARZRZER

3.3 Smart Card Application System
33 HBEHEFTERERS

Commence the small-scale production of

security Smart Card Application System

MR I RELEEZEZRPFERESR

Continue production of existing Smart

Card Application System

BETERERHEFERES

34  ANNUAL REPORT RO &8 |
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The Company has put great emphasis on
research and development of network security
products, aiming for technical breakthrough and
constant upgrades. The Company has produced
55 sets of JB-SG2 Network Security Gateway and
260 sets of security gateway firewall products.
In view of the ever increasing market demands,
the Company will continue to manufacture and
develop the existing network security products
so as to satisfy the needs and meet the demands
of our customers.

LB THMNERBRZEERFBRNE BERW
LTHFER THEHFBRR CEERZE2HBEIB-
SG2HSSERFEBHB A 20E-EMEERBEER
KOFEBT RNAGBRELERERERZER 2
FuBEEFER.

The Company has conducted small-scale
production to cater for customers’ requirements
such as government authorities.
ARBACETTNIELEE REUFRPREE
HERAFHER:

With the
development of Smart Card Application System,

rapid growth in research and
the Company has produced 260 sets of access
control system for the guest house of Peking
University, 100 sets of controllers for access

control machines and 200 sets of smart card

system for the campus card project.

LR EREFRERASTBETHRBANBRAT
EITT206MFERGNEE BRERARILEEKE
WENABERE 100AMERAELEERBEAR
PSR R2006 M REGIBREERBRAREF
i
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3.4  GPS Application System
34 GPSERZES

Trial sampling of JB-420M products The Company has completed trial sampling of
JB-420M products.

HBLIB-420ME @ 2 B A EBARDFEMASHTR B % AIB-420ME &
ZEAHRE-

Commence full-scale production of 1st  Based on the trial sampling results, the Company
0 generation GPS Application System  has conducted development and production of
(JB230M) products the 1st generation GPS Application System
(JB230M) products.
HMHETEHEEE-RGPSERRESR THTELHREHRE FEEFTHREEIB2ZOME-—K
(UB230M) E & GPSERESER UTEHEFNERBAREREZ
J 4R -

3.5 WFAS
35 HEHHERERS

Commence trial production of Znd From past experience of the related projects as
generation of WFAS products well as the mutual efforts of the research and
development staff, the Company has trial

produced ten sets of the 2nd generation WFAS

products.
‘ HEREE_RERENRERSER EBERQNITANEBEIREEMBRELEELER
WER - BKBMBRABNHABE D maaR

EHRETEE-_RESHEIRERRER -

Continue full-scale production and The Company has continued full-scale
assembly of existing WFAS products production and assembles of existing WFAS
products, especially for WFAS installed in large
scenic gardens and ancient buildings such as
the Summer Palace, key fire protection

o companies and housing estates.
o HEZELEERAKRAGERERRERS ALARCEBZELERAXRREESEBRYE
ER FHEER UAREAALEN BANES SRS
BREHAEN-PEREHERBELHRERFNER.

LANNUS L RERORT- 0. B8] 35
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4. Relevant approvals and permits
B L REF AT

In 2000, the Company was designated as one of the commercial cryptographic products
manufacturing companies by China State Cryptography Control Authority Office.
CEREFL AN AR RTEERENEEEZES SR AEHATEAATABREEREESE
BEEE Y-

A

1

4.1 Security lcs
41 EEER

Receive approval from State Cryptography  $SP01 Algorithm Chip has been inspected and

Control authorities for 2nd generation passed the testing by State Cryptog(aphy

Security ICs Control authorities for future production.
RE-NZZOCARGEREREERBZ  SSPOIBBEECHACEERESRBR X AT
# X BITEE-

4.2 Network Security Products
42 HEREERER

SJYO1-A Information Encryption Card has been
inspected and approved by State Cryptography
Control authorities and also accepted for using
SSPO1 Algorithm Chip for further
development.

SIYOI-ABBEB FNFRCKBBEENME I
B EZB8BEBFLEACERAEABUY
SSPOIEWBHEET F -

our

Apply for sales permit for role-base No approval is required for role-base

authentication software e-mail filter
software and VPN model from the Ministry
of Public Security

HMIERAERERNERMG FHBEEMAFRVPN
HEREAREREHERE

36 [ ANNUAL REPORT-RO0D &&

authentication software and e-mail filter
software, and VPN model was still under research
and development.
EREFRHANBHEERRGEETRFRELE
MVPNIEE BTG -
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4.2 Network Security Products (Cont'd)
42 RPREEZER (E)

Apply sales permit for application specific
security gateway from the Ministry of
Public Security

REAZEREOARHRFHENTHE

4.3 Smart Card Application System
43 HBEFEARASR

Apply to the Ministry of Public Security
and National Bureau of Metrology for the
qualification wupgrade in security
engineering from Grade 2 to Grade

MEZIERE-RRAZE—RAOOIR

BEEXRTERREHAFEUREER

Apply to the Ministry of Construction of
the PRC for approval of intelligence

building and system integration

REZEENASRERQTEERFLRHS
B RS AL E

4.4  GPS Application System
44 GPSEBARL

Cbtain approval from the Ministry of

Information Industry Wireless
Management Authority for 2nd generation
GPS Application System (JB420M)

BB _RGPSEARA (JB420M) BUIEER

EXTERESEEERAX

% % 8 B oz kB

The Company has obtained sales permit from
the Ministry of Public Security for specific
network security gateway.
ERAZEEEBRABHETF I B RSBt E.

Currently, no approval or permit is required for
existing application system projects. Relevant
applications will be submitted according to
requirements for business development.
BAALAMPEMIRENEZHCANFRE
BREBEEFETHB.

Currently, no approval or permit is required for
existing smart card application system products.
Relevant applications will be submitted
according to requirements for business
development.

BMEBRAXRARTNREAFEAIRZETFENM

XMHFAR SREBEEFBETHE

The Company has obtained 223-235M trial
frequencies from the Ministry of Information
Industry Wireless Management Authority for its
2nd generation GPS Application system.
ERBEZNRGPSERASCNEEREREER
B 2223—235MEA BB X IE -
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45  WFAS
4.5 g SRR & E N

Obtain approval from Shenyang Fire
Protection E-Product Intendance Proof-
test Centre and Nation Fire Protection
Quality Intendance Proof-test Centre for
2nd generation WFAS
MERESENBERROBRHBEET
EREERAFLERFTERETERER
EERBIOEREBHX

5. Marketing activities
5. HIBHEED

51 Open representative offices and after

sales service centre in Shanghai

5.1 EERRKEAPBERERRE L

5.2  Enter into agreement with regional sales

agents

52 HBHEREITIBE

8 [ ANNUAL -REPORT-E 00 & |
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The Company has submitted its 2nd generation
WFAS products and relevant materials to
Shenyang Fire Protection E-Product Intendance
Proof-test Centre and Nation Fire Protection
Quality Intendance Proof-test Centre for proof-
test and acceptance.
ERAEEENE-_RESENRERABTHEY
B EEREHEEFEREERARLOREFHERE
EFERESETHBFRLER-

The Company has obtained approval from
Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic
Cooperation for the establishment of a Shanghai
branch office, and is actively preparing for its
establishment.
FLABREEREHNESKBESERMERT LE
SAR RERBEERISAAEE"

The Company has already concluded
agreements with 34 regional sales agents and
engaged in widening sales channels of the
Company's products. The Company is now in
the process of setting up distribution agents in
Xinjiang and Lanzhou.
EABRRENBAEMNBYERSHEBSEE RE
BHEMRMBWEREBERITLBE E—LBERQIEIE
HEGRWHERE
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53

5.3

Participate in professional exhibitions in
Beijing, Shandong, Shanghai, Guangzhou
and China High-tech Production Fair in
Shenzhen

SELFVLR LB BNZEXRERR
JIzrESHFEMREXSZE

B 2 R Z

According to market conditions, the Company
has made appropriate adjustments to the market
activities in the regions by attending a number
of conferences related to the information
technology industry, including:

RETSEL XATESBET MR EBNME
YEmTEFETIHTEANSEENEERRIT
EBMRIAE-HPaE:

m Network Information Security Working
Conference jointly sponsored by Nanjing

Public Security Department and Security

Bureau;
BRAZBENARERHARENRNRAKERR
ETHEER

(2) China Petroleum Industry Information

Computerization Working Conference

held in Lanzhou;

EEMNERNPERRRSEREELLTH

=f

(3) Network Information Security Discussion
organized by the Secretary Bureau of the
State Council in Yunnan;
EEEETHESRBIBEEBEEREEN
WE

(4) Network Information Security High-level
Discussion hosted by the Information
Industry Ministry in Beijing;
EREXNSACTEAKRELRZLWHES;

[ANNUAL REPORT BO0OD £8 |39
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53

5.3

wmOBR

Participate in professional exhibitions in
Beijing, Shandong, Shanghai, Guangzhou
and China High-tech Production Fair in
Shenzhen (Cont'd)

ZRELFZ UR-EF BENZEERERR
NeHESHFRWARKEE (&)

40 [ENNUBL=REPOREE QO D50

RO B %

B <z b =

World Computer Conference sponsored
by China Computer Society, Banking and
Financial Electronic Modernization Forum
in Beijing hosted by the People’s Bank of
Ching;
FEARBITELERERNEREFLRH
I

System Security Working Conference
hosted by Hunan Security Bureau;
HEERERRALARERE TS

Senior Government Officials Information
Security Discussion held in Beijing;
EERBITHHRESREEGEZREAH

= .
=]

National Gold Shield Project Exhibition in
Beijing; and
EIFRETHL2ESREIRRES R

Products
State

Commercial
Exhibition

Cryptography Control authorities.
EERABNEEERRTESE-

Encryption
sponsored by
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5.4

5.4
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Conduct seminars and trade shows in
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen for

product promotion

TS BENRRIERHATERRET
HEEER

I

The Company has been engaged in different

kinds of forums and exhibitions concerning the

information industry according to the market

conditions, including:
BATRETHEL 2N TEEENEERET
XN EREHE-HPEHE:

M

China High-tech Production Fair in
Shenzhen for promotion and marketing of
our network security products, encryption
products and other new products;
ERNSNFESHAMERARZE BEX
THLARREZ2ER BBEERRINER
MEF-BE,

Second China International Computer
Information System Security Exhibition;
E_RTEERERERRAARTRERES,

2000 International Social Public Security
Products and police apparatus Exhibition;
and
TEEREFEBRLEEAORTEEGREAR
BEEES R

An anti-hacker specific network security
technology appraisal meeting held in
Chongging for an invention patent
certificate by State Intellectual Property
Bureau.
TEBRDRERT-—EHHBIBEIEALEH
BEMRARETE CESERANBEER
BB ENEE
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5.5  Form strategic alliances with government  The Company has organized national agents
bodies to market the Company's products  working conference in Beijing, held products
presentations together with relevant authorities

of the Ministry of Public Security in nine

provinces in order to widen our sales channels.

55 ERAHBEEERMEERE UTHALE HELtEEH2EARBREIFEE HAEAENLZ

NER » BREASAACHERNAS - EHTLIHEER
EEDHHEERE-
5.6  Establish after sales service centre in  The Company has established after-sale service .
Beijing centre in Beijing and tried to make

improvements and perfection on the products

according to customers’ feedback.
56 BIERRIEBRBFO HIEFRRIEERBE UBEEF XENEIR
BFELARERNENTR - EERERHA-
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Use of Proceeds

The proceeds from the issue of new shares for
the listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
after deduction of related expenses, amounted
to approximately RMB277.7 million. Included in
the above net proceeds, approximately RMB38
million was planned to provide additional
working capital of the Group. The remaining net
proceeds of approximately RMB239.7 million was
planned and applied to achieve the business
objectives as set out in the Prospectus, of which
an amount of approximately RMB37.7 million was
to be applied for the period from 27th July, 2000
(date of listing on the GEM) to 31st December,
2000 as follows:

£ % B R oz b B

FEeREAEARR

BRARBEXAAIER LT EHREEXILERSE
IR ARK 277,700,000 EABHRIEE WA
R #38,000,000 B FEENNE BE T - HUNARYE
239,700,000t R/ EREREENFEKEE EF
HARME37, 700000 A ERBR _EZESTF LA
+tREAERAER LT RIE=SEEEF+ =
B=+—BHEOT:

Amount utilised

Original plan up to 31st
up to 31st December, December,
2000 2000
REtElE=s BHE-ZZTEHF
—=E2EF¥ +IZA=t1t-H
+=-—EBE=+—8 CHAREE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBT T
Research and development of MEHARNKMNE 17,700 7,000
embedded technology and EEREREEM (Mita)
related application products
{(Note a)
Setting up a research and FRRIIER LR A (K aEb) 10,000 Nil
development centre in Shenzhen
{Note b)
Marketing and promotion activities MBEEREEZE 2,000 1,700
Setting up representative offices in RABEFEBRIRRBEE 5,000 Nil
Shanghai in the PRC (Note <) ZEIMER (M)
Recruitment of additional staff to BESTIRABHRTE 3,000 1,200

the Company and general staff
for the representative offices to be
established in Shanghai in the PRC

EBRIZREBRERE
BRE-RBE
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=

RN

Notes:

1

B & &£

B

During the year, the Company has adjusted its
plan for capital expenditure on embedded
technology due to the rapid development of
embedded technology. The Company will
acquire the equipment for the research and
development of embedded technology in
accordance with the industry condition in year
2001.

As at 31st December, 2000, the Company was
in the process of applying for a piece of land
located at High & New Technology Industry
Park, Shenzhen, for the construction of a
research and development centre. No material
cost had been incurred in respect of the
application procedure. The Company plans to
commence the construction of Shenzhen
research and development centre in the second
half of year 2001.

As at 31st December, 2000, the Company has
obtained the approval for establishment of the
Shanghai Branch Office. The Company was in
the process of registering the branch office in
Shanghai. No material cost had been incurred
in respect of the registration procedure. The
the
establishment of Shanghai branch office in the

Company plans to commence

second quarter of year 2001.

44 [ ANNUAL:RERPORTER (O[04 8-

ES

CEE

B & B 2 b B

ZEE ALRARBRAANZMNOARRRE AR
THHRAXNENTNEIEER -T2 ERE-F
E-FHTEBER BERZRANRANES-

R-BBEEF+-A=Z+-H XDFEERHE—
BRURRNTESFARMEXEN L EEREBHR
PO CREERE WEBRLEEARE -F LGS
REEBZ-FTEFRABERIWARFLNT
2o

R-BEEF+ZA=+—-RB FOaEEEHILL
BRI RESERLEREERFR-
RMEBEEMIFR TEREFEAAE-Z2THE
RoEER-FE-_ZFEMRBBYILBFILA-




Report of the Directors
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Amounts expressed in Renminbi

The Directors have the pleasure of presenting the first
annual report together with the audited financial
statements of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary
(tocgether “the Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2000

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company
Limited (the "Company”) was incorporated as a Sino-
foreign joint stock limited company in Beijing, the
People’s Republic of China, on 29th March, 2000. The
Company’s shares have been listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 27th
July, 2000.

On 17th April, 2000, the Company completed a
reorganisation as set out in the Company’s Prospectus
dated 20th July, 2000 (the “Reorganisation”). The
Reorganisation involved entities under common control,
and the Company resulting from the Recrganisation is
regarded as a continuing business. Accordingly, the
Reorganisation has been accounted for on the basis of
merger accounting, under which the financial statements
have been prepared as if the Reorganisation had been
completed as at 1st January, 2000 and the business
activities had been conducted by the Company since
1st January, 2000, rather than from the date on which
the Reorganisation was completed. The comparative
figures as at and for the year ended 31st December,

1999 have been presented on the same basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is the research,
development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of
embedded systems including Global Positioning System
application system ("GPS application system”), network
security products, wireless fire alarm system ("WFAS"),
application specific integrated circuit ("ASIC"), smart card
application system and related products and integrated
circuits. The Company is also engaged in the provision
of total solution through application of its existing
embedded system products. The Company’s subsidiary
is still dormant as at 31st December, 2000.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Company’s turnover by product,
together with their respective contributions to profit from
operating activities for the year ended 31st December,
2000 is as follows:

FTEXH

FLBCEEXERBARETR B -
E-THEEREERARNRAER B
EMRENMEARS ([GPSEARL]) -8
BE2ER ESHEFBREESR
(TWFAS]) EREMER ([ASICH) -8
AREERAGEREHEEREERERE &
AR T ERRARERARNERARER B
EFRHALXERAFTRE-XLIMBLE
R-BEEF+ZRA=Z+—BEKxE X

SEER
LTABREREMNSTBE-TEEF+
TAEST-EBELEEMEXBUREEN
EERR BRI

Contribution to

profit from
operating
RMB’000 Turnover activities
ARKFT sEE EEBRMNELERE
GPS application system GPSEERE#HR 22,563 19,161
Network security products HRE2ED 22,043 6,179
Wireless fire alarm system BEHGRERS - 6,621 4,775
Application system integrated ERERER 6,287 3,258
circuits
Smart card zpplication system BAERARSR 3,329 (1,005)
60,843 32,368

No analysis of turnover and contribution to profit from
operating activities by geographical location is presented

as all of the Company's operations are in the PRC.

46 | ANNUAL REPORT ROO0 &4 |

HRELCBNWEBSZHUNFTE RHAE
RUHBONEXERSERTERMA-




Report of the Directors

E = g ® =
Amounts expressed in Renminbi SHUAARBAE
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS ERFEES

The percentage of sales and purchases attributable to

the Company’s suppliers and customers for the year are

FEETLTREBNEFNEBEHER
REBEHRESLLNOT:

as follows:

Sales HE

The largest customer BXKEF 23.4%
Five largest customers EREF 65.8%
Purchases BE

The largest supplier BAHRERD 14.4%
Five largest suppliers TEARMEES 58.0%

Save as disclosed in the note "Connected Transactions”
below, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholders {(which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had 2 beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group's results for the year ended 31st
December, 2000 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 65 of this annual report.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of RMB 0.5 cents per share, totalling RMB 4,820,000 and
recommend that the retained profit of approximately
RMB 14,152,000 as at 31st December, 2000 be carried

forward.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movement in share capital of the company
are set out in Note 15 and 16, respectively, to the

accompanying financial statements.

BFXREXS | - WEFREN BS
FRENBBEA TR EARE GBESFH
AR A B RARS%E b I EEE
BETEAESAMESGEAEEES

XEARDIR

FEEBRE_EETEF A=+ -8B
FENEBRNETIERFSEFSHERER
A e

ETERNRBUERARBOSORERE
S H ARY4,620,0000; X RE TS
F+ZB=+T—HHAKRH® 14,152,000
MRZEBRRNEREFETH-

AL 75 B f@ AR

ARBRANEBFEDT B RN 808
BERMEEISR16 -
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RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFIT

Movements in reserves and retained profit of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in Note 17

to the accompanying financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares up to date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association.

SUBSIDIARY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiary are set out in

Nctes 11 to the accompanying financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movement in fixed assets are set out in

Note 10 to the accompanying financial statements.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme are set out in Note 18 to

the accompanying financial statements

48 [ANNUAL REPORT RO00 &8 |

® =

SHEUARBAEN

HERREBAT

EREERFICIARFANFBRERERRERF
BB E N E AR RRMTET -

BE - HEHABEERHG

EEXRENBEAH F2ARNREME R
AR ERBE HEREEERQTEMAMLS
R A7 e

B
AATWEAKEEMABEE L ENHE
;‘(o

RN
ERATMBLBNFBERWENTEIR
FFIEF11 ©

ExEEE
FRAEBEEESDHEERNWENETER
FMIFEIO ©

R &8

BRARESTHEFTERRM BN B BRI
180




Report of the Directors

E E g

Amounts expressed in Renminbi

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

® &

EHUAREREN

MEX S

During the year, the Company entered into the following RER FALQXFHLEFRAE -ME@FRZEL
connected transactions with Peking University, the Four A(EBEXQAT-ZEEFLHAZT+H
Domestic Promoters (as defined in the Company's HIEREEZR)ERHRENHERALTETTH
prospectus dated 20th July, 2000), and their associates: THHEEXS:

2000
—zEEF
RMB’000
ARBTF T

{(a) Provision of total solution services for GPS
application systems to Sichuan Tian Mu
Monitored Security Company Limited

{b) Sales of network security products and
provision of related total solution services to
Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech
Company Limited (“Beijing Tiangiao")

(c) Royalty fee for the Global Positioning System
technology paid/payable to Beijing Tiangiao

(d) Rental expense for equipment paid/payable to
The Institute of Microelectronics

(e) Rental income for equipment received/receivable
from The Institute of Microelectronics

(f) Provision of total solution services for WFAS
pursuant to an agreement dated
23rd December, 2000 to Hainan Jade Bird
Safeguard Fire Alarm and Monitor

Technologies Company Limited

(g) Provision of total solution services for embedded
systems to Peking University and Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Tian Tong Information Construction
Company Limited

{(h) Purchase of inventories from Beijing Tiangiao

(a) MEJIXBEERZESR
ERCBARHERECER
RE2EBRSERYE 15,000

b) BIRABLEAETBREK
REERLF ([IERKE])
HEMABZEERRIEMR
HENEERRTRRER 2,587

© B EALERRENHZH
EURGEMERNES 713

(D ENEBEHMETFE
MEARBHEEER 892

(e) BUR "FEUHME T2
MEARBEAESWA 893

hH RE-EEEHF+=-AF
ZtHZBEFINBE O
BEERE LT HFRE
EEEmARABREM
B EVNBRERSRZE
BERFERE 6,000

(@ AERABRIEFTEKRES
REBEERIRBREEZLT

BREBRAXNRAEZE
AT ERT 999
(h) RIERXBBAFE 745

| ANNUAL REPORT ROWOO &8 |49




R

)

port of the Directors

E B g #H &
Amounts expressed in Renminbi $BUARBAEN

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

A waiver has been granted by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, relating to the connected party
transactions (a) to (e) above, to exempt the Company
from compliance with provisions related to connected

transaction set out in Rule 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Transactions (f) and (g) were entered into with associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Limited, which is a promoter of the Company.
Transaction (h) was entered into with Beijing Tiangiao
Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Company Limited, which is also

a promaoter of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors reviewed the
connected transactions and confirmed that:

M the connected transactions were entered into by
the Company in the ordinary and usual course of

business of the Company;

the connected transactions were entered into on
normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms not less favorable than terms available for

independent third parties; and

the connected transactions were entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole;
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
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EENARBREN

MEXS (#E)

The auditors of the Company reviewed the connected FRAFTNZEAFELKLBR L@ ZE()EN
transactions (a) to (e) above, and advised the board of HEXZ TEZEHFHAEEE==:

directors in writing that:

(1) the connected transactions were approved by the (1) BEXZCEBIESSHE,

board of directors;

(2) the connected transactions were entered into in (2) BEEXZEREREZERZ NG
accordance with terms of the agreement BHNBRRETL MEEHEERSEY
governing the transactions, and the pricing RELAMESEZRNRHE - WES
policies as stated therein if the transactions involve AERZEBBETNITBEBRRE
provision of goods or services by the Company; TR
and

(3) the connected transactions were within the (3) BREX SNSRI EB LA
relevant caps applicable to such transactions FHRBERANER LR
under the waiver granted by the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACTS

EEREENRBSH

The directors, all zppointed on 16th March, 2000, who #XEERBEEARETHUBHZETES
held office during the year and up to the date of this (ZEHR_-FBEEF=Fr<BEEZE) MW

report are:

Executive directors
Mr. Xu Zhen Dong
Prof. Chen Zhong

Prof. Zhang Wan Zhong
Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang

Prof. Liu Yue

Non-executive director
Prof. Yang Fu Qing
Prof. Wang Yang Yuan
Prof. Han Ru Qi

Mr. Xing Huan Lou

Mr. Lo Lin Shing, Simon

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Liu Yong Ping
Prof. Nan Xiang Hao

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Yong Li
Mr. Li Chun

Mr. Fan Yi Min
Mr. Du Hong

Ms. Lu Qing

T

PITESE

SRR A
R OEHR
EETHR
HEE AL
B HRR

FHITES
BERBHE
EBAHE
BITH AR
MRBERE
BEWALE

BYFHTEE
Bkt
AR

e
2k R %
= BhE
EESEE
Mo
E sxt
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Cont'd)

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from 29th March, 2000 (date of

incorporation)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31st December, 2000, except for those shares held
through Heng Huat Investments Limited ("Heng Huat”)
as set out below, none of the Directors and the
supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisors”) or their
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other
interests in the shares of the Company or associated
corporations, if any, pursuant to section 29 of the SDI

Ordinance.

HENG HUAT

Mr. Xu Zhen Dong, Prof. Zhang Wan Zhong and Prof. Liu
Yue, all executive Directors of the Company, are trustees
holding 60, 20 and 20 shares out of 100 shares in the
issued share capital of Heng Huat. Mr. Xu Zhen Dong,
Prof. Zhang Wan Zhong and Prof. Liu Yue are also

directors of Heng Huat.

By a Declaration of Trust made as a deed on 19th July
2000, Mr. Xu Zhen Dong, Prof. Zhang Wan Zhong and
Prof. Liu Yue declared that they held the shares of Heng
Huat as trustees for the benefits of 477 employees of
the Jade Bird Group and the Company. Heng Huat and
Gamerian Limited are the two shareholders beneficially
entitled to approximately 93.37% and approximately
6.63% respectively in the issued share capital of Dynamic
Win Assets Limited ("Dynamic Win").
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS EFREENRMES (E)
IN SHARES (Cont'd)

The beneficial interests of the Directors and Supervisors EBEEREBHREREETIE2ITRET S

in the share capital of the Company are deemed as HEBERREZ:

follows:
Percentage of deemed
beneficial interest in the
Company's share capital
Type of Number of BHERELLE
Director/Supervisor interests Shares RAEFHTE
BEE ES K 25 3R 5 BB E EEBEBIE
Mr. Xu Zhen Dong Other 76,874,140 7.97%
FIREELE Hu
Mr. Zhang Wan Zhang Other 21,732,240 2.25%
EBRAE HAitg
Ms. Liu Yue Other 21,732,240 2.25%
2 Mzt Hfth
Mr. Xu Zhi Xiang Other 8,086,500 0.84%
®mEHELE H
Mr. Chen Zhong Other 8,086,500 0.84%
B kL H
Prof. Yang Fu Qing Other 12,129,750 1.26%
BRBHE H 1
Prof. Wang Yang Yuan Other 12,129,750 1.26%
B P € H e
Mr. Zhang Yong Li* Other 4,043,250 0.42%
SRR S B
Mr. Li Chun* Other 336,680 0.03%
T FihEr Hib
Mr. Fan Yi Min* Other 151,600 0.02%
. BBREEr H
* Supervisors * -3

R BT
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS ESREENRMER (&

IN SHARES (Cont'd)

Other than disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2000,
neither the Directors nor their associates, had any
interests in any securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance,
and neither the Directors nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any

such right during the year.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

The Company conditionally approved a share option
scheme on 5th July, 2000, pursuant to which the board
may, at its discretion, grant share option to any full-time
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the
Company’s share in issue at the date of grant. However,
employees who are PRC nationals shall not be entitled
to exercise the option until the current restrictions on
PRC nationals from subscribing for or dealing in H Shares
imposed by the relevant PRC law and regulations have
been abolished or removed. As at 31st December, 2000,
no options have been granted by the Group to any

employees.

At no time during the year was the Company or any or
its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any
arrangements to enable any of the Company's Directors
or members of its management to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st
December, 2000, none of the Directors or Supervisors
was granted options to subscribe for H shares of the
Cempany. As at 31st December, 2000, none of the
Directors or the Supervisors had any rights to acquire H

shares in the Company.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EEMESHNER

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any of the Company's Directors
or members of its management had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2000, the only persons directly or
indirectly entitled to exercise or contro! the exercise of
10% or more of the voting power at general meetings of
the Company, or otherwise interested in 10% or more of
the issued share capital of the Company were as follows:

EERBIRE-EERNEAREH B 08
RHEEAMBELARBERITNS REEE
EXBEANENDT FA2TNESHHET
EEXREYBREERMERAEEMEAE

éo

FERR

momEsfFt=pAg=t+-85 w-HE
HEEE T ERERTEEAQRITARREK
ERERI0%RHUA L RUEMERNEER
DA EBTHREIORH U LERZ Z AT W
T

Approximate

Number of effective interests
Promoters’ in the Company
Shareholder Shares P NN
By = BREARMEE BMAHBERER
Peking University (Note 1) 221,345,350 22.96%
b mAKE (fEET)
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Company
{"Jade Bird Software”) (Note 2) 136,345,350 14.14%
EtEREAXETERGFLQ2A([ESTRHE])
(Ftaz2)
Dynamic Win (Note 3) 220,000,000 22.82%
HEBEE (F3)
Heng Huat (Note 3) 205,414,000 21.31%
Heng Huat (#73F3)
Notes: B EF
(1) Peking University, through Jade Bird Software, Jade Bird, &) tRABEREERGE -FE - FHR -4t

Yu Huan and Beijing Tiangiao, has effective interests in
the Company comprising:

(a) 85,000,000 shares (representing approximately
8.82% of the Company's issued share capital)
held by Yu Huan, which is beneficially wholly-
owned by Peking University;

RABRELCAREEARERS BIE:

(a) B FE#$H 2 85,000,0008% B 14
(EX QA BE BTEX
#882%) MFRHILRARE
wEEESE;
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont'd)

(b) 110,000,000 shares (representing approximately
11.41% of the Company's issued share capital)
held by Jade Bird Software, which is beneficially
wholly-owned by Peking University;

(c) 18,400,000 shares {representing approximately
1.91% of the Company’s issued share capital)
held through Jade Bird, which is approximately
46% owned by Peking University;

(d) 7,945,350 shares (representing approximately
0.82% of the Company’s issued share capital)
held through Beijing Tiangiao, which is

EHUARBHEN

FERE (8

(b) SR EMEHEE 21100000008
BEH (A 2TESRTRES
H1141%) MBREMFHEILER
ABEERETERSR

() EBE R 5 2 18,400,0008% A%
@B(EERLITEBITHRE
#1.91%) MBEHILEREBE
BH46%ER K

(d) EBILRRXEFE 27,945,350
BEG (EEXLIATBITRSES
#0.82%) MARREDEILR

approximately 10.60% owned by Peking KEFF10.60% ©
University.
(2) The interests of Jade Bird Software comprises: (2) ERARMZEREHE:
(a) 110,000,000 shares (representing approximately (a) BREM4E 2110,000,0008
11.41% of the Company’s issued share capital) B (A2 BITRAF
held by Jade Bird Software; #11.41%)
(b) 18,400,000 shares (representing approximately (b) EBETBFHE 218,400,000/ B2
1.91% of the Company’s issued share capital) BEEQLIRASHTRAE
held through Jade Bird, which is approximately H191%) MBEBEDHILERE
46% owned by Jade Bird Software; BEH46%ER,
(c) 7,945,350 shares (representing approximately (c) BRI ARERFE 27,945,350
0.82% of the Company’s issued share capital) BRSO (EADAEBITRE
held through Beijing Tiangiao, which is #0.82%) ML R RABIIAHILR
approximately 10.60% owned by Jade Bird KEBEEN10.60% °
Software.
(3) Dynamic Win is a limited liability company incorporated  (3) HBEEDREATKRANRE BEMK

in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance, the
shareholding of which is held as to approximately 6.63%
by Gamerian Limited and approximately 93.37% by Heng
Huat. Gamerian Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of
New World CyberBase Limited, which is a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Heng Huat is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Island, the entire issued share capital of
which is held by three of the executive directors of the
Company as trustees for the benefits of the qualified

employees of the Jade Bird Group and the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no notice of

any interests to be recorded under Section 16(1) of the

Y Z2EBERRAT D B B Gamerian
Limited® Heng HuatiF B X 436.63% K&
#93.37% I8 #E o Gamerian LimitedJ3 #f
tARAYBEEHERIATNZZENER
B OmMHtABEEMBERATNZES
THZAMER LT Heng Huat IR KR
BZBEBIAMALZAT HEQXTF=
NBTESEASTIAFTEELHBE R
TR BEZARBREERELTAZ
SEEER-

MREXFEBN ALATAEEESBRE_F
EEF+ A=+ -BEREMERERE

SDI Ordinance as at 31st December, 2000. BHWEERGH T 16(MMBEER-
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Amounts expressed in Renminbi U ARM BB
SPONSOR’S INTEREST REARZT

As at 31st December, 2000, New World CyberBase
Limited, an associate of the Company's sponsor, Tai Fook
Capital Limited ("Tai Fook”), held 70,000,000 Promoters’
Shares of the Company. In addition, New World
CyberBase Limited through its another wholly owned
subsidiary, Gamerian Limited, held a 6.63% shareholding
in Heng Huat which in turn held 220,000,000 Promoters’
Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Tai Fook (including its directors
and employees) and its associates, do not have any
interest in the Company as at 31st December, 2000.

Pursuant to the Sponsor's agreement dated 19th July
2000 between the Company and Tai Fook, Tai Fook
received a fee for acting as the Company’'s retained
sponsor for the period from 27th July 2000 to 31st
December 2002.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into or existed

during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders of
the Company and their respective associate (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business
which competes or may compete with the businesses of

the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 5th
July 2000 with terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.23, 5.24 and 5.25 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Company. The Audit Committee has two members
namely, the two independent non-executive Directors,

Ms. Liu Yong Ping and Prof. Nan Xiang Hao.

MN-ZEEFE+_A=+—RB F2FR
BAXREREBRLOBA ([XE\E]) 9B
DA -HFERBBEERLTAIFTHELALRR
¥8 A B2 70,000,000 « L 5h - Tt R BB R
BMLARBRES—2EMB LI —
Gamerian Limited » 5 86.63%EH A2 T
2% %€ A B2 220,000,000 M9 5% — 2 & —
Heng Huat °

BREMEE KB (BEEEESRBE) R
HEAROREETARRREES

=
=

RKIE—BEEFELATNLAXRLTEKRE
MELRMILZREANE REHE
ERLOB WM -FEEEFLAT+t

BE-ZEE-F+-/A=+—RHEHE
ERATRBANEBEA-
FEESH

A E RIS T Y A E A EAEAR A
A2 NAEMEERS EBHEERTR
HE K.

HERE

FARAEEESHNEERERR (ERRAER
EHRAYBRETDIEBLBRES
RAREBREFNEEEAES

BENERSE

FLAFEBERIEEEFLAEARY—@
ERZEEEe UIRBAERLTHEAUE
5235245 25F M E X ESE - BZ
ZEESTFEREARAFTHAQOAUBRE
EFREASEZHE - EREESEEAR
NRE AMUBIFHUTESEXRTF
T REEEHE-
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Amounts expressed in Renminbi S EUARBE BB
Use of Proceeds FrRi8FIE A

The proceeds from the issue of new shares for the listing
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, after deduction of
related expenses, amounted to approximately RMB277.7
Included

approximately RMB38 million was planned to provide

million. in the above net proceeds,
additional working capital of the Group. The remaining
net proceeds of approximately RMB239.7 million was
planned and applied to achieve the business objectives
as set out in the Prospectus, of which an amount of
approximately RMB37.7 million was to be applied for
the period from 27th July, 2000 (date of listing on the

GEM) to 31st December, 2000 as follows:

FBEARBEIAEERLET ETHRMEEX
HEETBRERAR®277,700,0007T < £
FTiS FRIE /R » £9 A EE #538,000,000 7T #E 1E 28
NEEEL - RFH ARNBE239,700,0007T
BEBEBRERNEBBEZ HFHOA
RH37.700000nfEAR_—SE2EFt
E-+ B EARBIERLETRIES
BEZEF+_A=+-—RBEANT:

Amount utilised

Original plan up to 31st
up to 31st December, December,
2000 2000
Rt BE BE_ZZEF
—EEEE +=—BA=+—-8
+=—A=+-—-8 EHREEHE
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBFT ARETFTT
Research and development of HEBERAXNENTR 17,700 7,000
embedded technology and HBERER (HMFa)
related application products
(Note a)
Setting up a research and PRIYNR L E O (FEEEb) 10,000 Nil
development centre in Shenzhen
(Note b)
Marketing and promotion activities TEHEEREEEY 2,000 1,700
Setting up representative offices in RPABEEBRNIRRBEER 5,000 Nil
Shanghai in the PRC (Note ¢) ZRIMER (M)
Recruitment of additional staff to BESIRABRDE 3,000 1,200

the Company and general staff
EE-REE

for the representative offices to be
established in Shanghai in the PRC

LBRIZARPEBE
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Amounts expressed in Renminbi SHUAREHBEN

Use of Proceeds (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a)

During the year, the Company has adjusted its plan for
spending on capital expenditure on embedded
technology due to the rapid development of embedded
technology. The Company will acquire the equipment
for research and development on embedded technology
in accordance with the industry condition in year 2001,

As at 31st December, 2000, the Company was in the
process of applying for a piece of land located at High
& New Technology Industry Park, Shenzhen, for
construction of a research and development centre. No
material cost had been incurred in respect of the
application procedure. The Company plans to
commence the construction of Shenzhen research and
development centre in the second half of year 2001.

As at 31st December, 2000, the Company has obtained
the approval for establishment of the Shanghai Branch
Office. The Company was in the process of registering
the branch office in Shanghai. No material cost had been
incurred in respect of the registration procedure. The
Company plans to commence the establishment of
Shanghai branch office in the second quarter of year
2001.

AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements were audited by

Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co. A resolution for the re-

appointment of Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co as the

auditors for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Cn behalf of the Board of Directors,
XU ZHEN DONG

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
28th March, 2001

FRERERR ()

BaE:

(a) EEF FQAFRBBEAXNEMEODAE
BE AERTHBRAXAEMNESITE
AALRBRESFT-FHTES
nOBERBANRAXNBE-

(b) R-IBEBESZHA=+—-80 F4H
EERBE-BURNRITEFRMESR
B L EBBERBFR O -AAFBRE.
BEBEBFBARE-RQDAFER=F
E-FTHEERFRERRIFEALY
TR

(c) RZBEEF+-A=Z+—-H F2H
BERI SR ORNAT RIEDHE
RELSpESHRFE-RPEIRFTE
VTEBEEARF-F2TATER-F
E-FEEZEHARL LEBIOF

% BB

MENYBBRBREFELRNER AR
RECLARNATRANEBANRERSRN
MEBRITHRREFASELRE-

REREEF
R
EE

FE AR
ZEE-F=ZH=1tANERE
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To the Shareholders:

For the year ended 31st December 2000, the Supervisors
of the Supervisory Committee have strictly complied with
the requirements of the "Company Law of The People’s
Republic of China”,
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock

“Rules Governing the Listing of
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” and the Articles of
Association of the Company and adhered to the
principles of honesty and integrity in discharging cur
supervisory duties and obligations faithfully and
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders, the
Company and its staff and be responsible to the

shareholders.

During the period of this Report, two meetings of the

Supervisory Committee were held.

(1) The first meeting of the first session of the
Supervisory Committee was held at the East Room,
Lakeside House, Peking University on 17th March
2000. The agenda of the meeting was the election
of the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of

the Company.

(2) The second meeting of the first session of the
Supervisory Committee was held at the conference
room on the third floor of the Company on 12
August 2000. The agenda of the meeting was the
review of the report of the 2000 interim results of

the Company.

During the period of this Report, the Supervisory
Committee was present at all the major activities of the
Company, such as the meetings of the Board of Directors
and had discharged its supervisory functions over the
Board of Directors and its members and senior
management, such as general manager, deputy general
managers, and the operations management of the

Company.
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BE = g % &

As a result of our work, the Supervisory Committee is in

a position to express its independent opinion in respect

of the following matters:

1.

The Supervisory Committee has verified the financial
information such as the financial and performance
reports and the profit appropriations proposal to
be submitted to the Annual General Meeting by
the Board of Directors in a serious manner. We are
of the opinion that the financial information audited
by Arthur Andersen & Co has reflected truly and
fairly the conditions of the operating results and

the assets of the Company.

The management of the Company was able to
execute the affairs of the Company in accordance
with the "Company Law of The People’s Republic
of China”

Company and establish a proper internal control

and the Articles of Association of the

system. During the period of this Report, the
Supervisory Committee has not discovered any act
of the management, in the performance of their
duties, that prejudiced the interests of the Company
and its staff, or contravened the laws and regulations
of the State and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

During the year, the Company was not threatened
with any major litigation nor was there any matter
that the Supervisory Committee had intervened with

or threatened against the Board of Directors.

The connected transactions of the Company, which
have fully complied with the relevant provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, were fair and reasonable.
We have not discovered any act that prejudiced the

interests of the Company.

—

METH EFSEHNTEEERE

ESERARUTESERTARR
RENTBRE XERSMABS
BAREUBEN -BSERR &%
EEQCRELRENMBEN BHED
RMWRERT D FIMEEEAMEENR
e
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BRsE) MO ZERBTARER
ByTENAREHAE ERS
BHARBERAEEERABESERR
ERERABDEBIEENRAKREE
BRBBEHEEREZR EZHMQAAE
BROITH-

AEFRARBEEANEKRFRSBEN
EEESnEESXSRAYESEHFY
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We would like to express our appreciation for the TEBEN-—FH BEBENIEELITA
strenuous supports given by the Shareholders, Directors BB UBRR -BESREZHEINAIXE
and all staff to the work of the Supervisory Committee  BUt R IR RO EFH !

during the past year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee AREBEH

ZHANG YONG LI R KR

Chairman ey

Beijing, the PRC FE AR .
28th March 2001 —EE-F=ZA=-tNB
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ARTHURANDERSEN

Arthur Andersen & Co

21st Floor Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of
BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH

COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People's Republic of China with limited
liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 65
to 105 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a
true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report

our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements
of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of
the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the
company and of the group, consistently applied and
adeqguately disclosed.
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Report of the Auditors
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of
the group as at 31st December, 2000 and of the profit
and cash flows of the group for the year then ended,
and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th March, 2001.
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Consolidated Income Statement
R e B & R

For the year ended 31st December, 2000 BEZE _ZEZ2E+ A= +—BLEFE
(Amounts expressed in Renminbi}

(EEAAREREN)

RMB'000 Note 2000 1999
AR#¥Frx Hrat —EEEER —hAAE
Turnover B 4 60,843 10,419
Operating expenses: BEBR:
Material and equipment HER®BHE (15,783) (7,270)
Employment costs AB R (10,817) (3,455)
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEERE (2,960) (1,262)
Other operating expenses HpnEeER (6,733) (2,931)
Profit (Loss) from operations EERF (FE) 24,550 (4,499)
Interest income FE WA 6,726 13
Exchange loss EREX (209) -
Profit (Loss) before taxation WA EA (HE) 5 31,067 (4,486)
Taxation HiE - -
Profit (Loss) attributable to BRELERF

shareholders (E518) 8 31,067 (4,486)
Earnings (Loss) per share SREF (B8

- Basic - ER (AR¥®RT) ? RMBO0.038 RMB(0.006)
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses
e e e HFECBABEERBEIER

For the year ended 31st December, 2000 BZ_EFZEF+-_A=Z+—HULFEF
(Amounts expressed in Renminbi) (&£ EUARE BE)

RMB’000 2000 1999
AR#BFT —TEEfR —ANE
Net gains not recognised in the ARGEBEERA

consolidated income statement BRHFWR

— Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets -EEEEFEEE - 2,608
Profit (Loss) attributable to shareholders BRREGERN (FE) 31,067 (4,486)
Total recognised gains (losses) DEAANRRE (B8 31,067 (1,878)
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Balance Sheets
E E B E &

As at 31st December, 2000 R-_EEZEF+-F=+—H
(Amounts expressed in Renminbi) (£EBUARB BN

Consolidated Company
=& N
RMB’000 Note 2000 1999 2000
ARFX ik _EETE —AAhE _EFTEE
Fixed assets BE&EE 10 9,882 8,480 9,882
[nvestment in subsidiary RERKE QS 11 - - 1
Current assets: RBEE:
Inventories FE 12 2,969 1,972 2,969
Prepayments and other RERK
current assets HtRnoHEE 13 21,884 317 21,908
Accounts receivable FE U BR #X 24,594 3,189 24,596
Cash and bank deposits BERBITER 327,469 12,341 327,468
Total current assets REEEHLE 376,918 17,819 376,941
Current liabilities: REEE:
Accounts payable EATERR 3 4,622 791 4,622
Accrued liabilities HIRER 14 5,803 870 5,803
Deferred revenue FEREWES 3 1,796 11,553 1,796
Provision for warranty RIGEE 500 500 500
Taxes payable EAEe 2,772 1,206 2,772
Total current liabilities BB EAR 15,493 14,920 15,493
Net current assets REEEFE 361,425 2,899 361,448
Net assets FEE 371,307 11,379 371,331
Represented by: KEB:
Share capital i@ 15 96,400 - 96,400
Reserves B 17 274,907 11,379 274,931
Total shareholders’ equity BRESEEH 371,307 11,379 371,331

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28th March, 2001

and signed on behalf of the Board by:

XU ZHEN DONG

FiRE
Director

EF

CHEN ZHONG

BR &
Director

EE

R-BEE-F=ZA-+N\AKEEEHE D
HUTEZERRESEHE:
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the year ended 31st December, 2000 BEZE -—ZEEEF+-_AZ+—HLEEE

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi) (£ FEUARE BEM)
RMB’000 Note 2000 1999
AR¥FT it & _EEEH —LWAAE
Net cash (outflow) inflow from HETHHES CGRA)
operating activities TANFEE 21(a) (12,328) 11,060
Returns on investments and RERBRRMEEA:
servicing of finance:
Interest received 2 W F B 3,061 13
investing activities: RETH:
Additions of bank deposits BM=@A LN
with maturity over three RITEBHFR
months (212,280) -
Purchase of fixed assets BERTEE (4,466) (1.139)
Proceeds from disposal FEEBRTEE
of fixed assets FRr8siE - 56
Loans B3 21(b) (19,260) -
Repayment of loans BEEEX 21(b) 19,260 -
(216,746) (1,083)
Net cash (outflow) inflow MERKREE CRE)
before financing RANFEE (226,013) 9,990
Financing: mE: 21(c)
Contribution by promoters RELAEEN
in connection with the BEAGZE
Reorganisation 21(d) 51,190 -
Issuance of H Shares BITHR 308,364 -
Share issuance expenses RITRONEA (30,693) -
328,861 -
Increase in cash and cash BeREEEEY
equivalents g 102,848 9,990
Cash and cash equivalents, FHURER
beginning of year HeEEY 12,341 2,351
Cash and cash equivalents, FREER
end of year HEZEEY 21(e) 115,189 12,341
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(RETHAN SEUAREHEW)

VTR R R T
1567 c% Compbny Lvd

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Reorganisation, basis of presentation and

principal activities

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company
Limited {the “Company”) was incorporated as a
Sino-foreign joint stock limited company in Beijing,
the People’s Republic of China, on 29th March, 2000.
The Company's shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 27th July, 2000,

On 17th April, 2000, the Company completed a
reorganisation as set out in the Company's
dated 20th 2000 (the

“Reorganisation”). The Reorganisation invelved

Prospectus July,
entities under common control, and the Company
resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded as &
continuing business. Accordingly, the Reorganisation
has been accounted for on the basis of merger
accounting, under which the financial statements
have been prepared as if the Reorganisation had
been completed as at 1st January, 2000 and the
business activities had been conducted by the
Company since 1st January, 2000, rather than from
the date on which the Reorganisation was
completed. The comparative figures as at and for
the year ended 31st December, 1999 have been

presented on the same basis.

No balance sheet of the Company as at 31st
December, 1999 is presented as it was incorporated
subsequent to that date.

The Company is principally engaged in the research,
development, manufacturing, marketing and sale of
embedded systems, including Global Positioning
System application systems, network security
products, wireless fire alarm systems, application
specific integrated circuits and smart card
application systems, and related products. The
Company is also engaged in the provision of total
solution services through application of its
embedded system products.

ER EREERTIEEH

ERUEAEREFRERBERLT
(TA2B DR _BBEF=/A=+
HAEHEARAMELERT RIS
PHEERGHERQT AT H
BOR-ZFEFLtA=-TLHER
ERBMEXEFERLE ([BX
Rl BRI Ed e

AAFER-ZEEZEENE+LBERE
R—EHEH FREQINR-EERE
FLtAZTHTEBRHHNEREERE (TE
B EEAFSERRABZHTHEL
FHHEAELEN SR ERME—
EEM B AL BEHUSHEFE
B BEERNERDBRELEAR
R-EREFE-FE-HEZ®R BX2
AINEE RS IR _BEEF A —
BEmMn MFBEHLATHE B LT
ER-AANE+ZA=Z+-BR
BEEZALFENLLREFTIRER
BHWEEZT .

ELER—NANAAE+=ZBA=+—H
BRI WMUEZVNZANEEER
i%o

FRAEEREBAR R -RE-T
SEERHEERANAZASER BF
EREVEARR - BEZEER &
MHERE RS ERER TR I8
ERERARG RIEBEER - A28 FE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (BRE/THBAN SBBUAREREN)
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Principal accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice ("SSAP") issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

The Company and its subsidiary (together, the
“Group”) have elected to early adopt SSAP 9
(revised) - “Events After the Balance Sheet Date”,
SSAP26 - "Segment Reporting”, SSAP 28 -
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, SSAP 29 — “Intangible Assets”, SSAP 30 -
“Business Combinations”, SSAP 31 — “Impairment
of Assets”, and SSAP 32 — “"Consolidated Financial
Statements and Accounting for Investments in
Subsidiaries”. Management has concluded that early
adoption of these standards has no material impact

on the Group's financial statements.
Principal accounting policies are summarised below:

(a) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis as modified by
stating certain fixed assets at revalued amount

as explained in Note 2(i) below.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BB m R W=

(BRBITHBN - GENARBEREN)

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Principal accounting policies (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are recorded from or to their
effective dates of acquisition or disposal.
and

Significant intra-group transactions

balances have been eliminated on

consolidation.

Subsidiary

A subsidiary is a company in which the
Company holds, directly or indirectly, more than
50% of the issued voting share capital as a long-
term investment. In the Company's financial
statements, investment in subsidiary is stated
at cost less provision for impairment in value,
and income from subsidiary is recorded to the

extent of dividends received and receivable.

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover comprises (i) the net invoiced value
for the sales of embedded systems and related
products, (ii) fees from fixed price contracts in
connection with the provision of total solution
services through application of its embedded
system products, and (iii) fees from technical
consulting, maintenance and training services,
excluding applicable value-added tax and

business tax.

2.

FEEFHEER B

(b)

(c)

(d)

RaE®

BEPYBBREBEACIARNE
REAINKRBE - RAFEMUBEY
HENMBLARMNERBHWE
REEERRIE AR EBHEB
MEAXRZRHBHECRERES
B RS R R AFIK SN -

B 2 F)

MEBASHERQ A EEREES
BFERITEREERAES0% L
ERPRENAT -RAERQAIN
HREBXF O RENMEQ MU
RATREEREBYR RN
BLOTWMAUBWRERERESR
PR a0 % °

BEERKANER

EEEEETHREANEER
FIEEBENORARXRGRE
MERINENTERERE ()
REBEREAERAXREER
EHEZEBASTERENEEE
BEHNWE RGIRBEME
HOEERSIRBEOKRE-
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g S e Pt ey e o g

e Tad e T G e

EFEEREGR (®)

EXBRBAEE (FH)

2. Principal accounting policies (Cont’d) 2.
(d) Turnover and revenue recognition (Cont'd) (d)
WATTRXEBEREHARITE

RZBHRZEBRBEE T
MAR LB REIT EEET:

Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a
transaction can be measured reliably and when
it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group, on the following bases:

Sales of embedded systems and related
products are recognised when the
installation work is completed and
customer has accepted the systems and
products together with the risks and

rewards of ownership.

Revenue from provision of total solution
services is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity.
Stage of completion is generally
determined by reference to the services
performed to date as a proportion of total
services to be performed. In instances
where the stage of completion is not
identifiable, revenue from the provision of
total solution service is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period in which
the work is performed. When the outcome
of a contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenues are recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that
are probable of recovery, and contract
costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. When it
is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MO OH RN =

{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Principal accounting policies (Cont'd)

(d) Turnover and revenue recognition (Cont'd)

(e)

e Maintenance revenue is recognised
rateably over the term of the respective
maintenance contract. Technical consulting
revenue revenue

and training are

recognised when the service is delivered.

e Interest income is recognised on a time

proportion basis on the principal

outstanding and at the rate applicable.

Deferred revenue represents amounts received
for which the earning process has not been

completed.

Taxation

Individual companies within the Group provide
for profits tax on the basis of their profits for
financial reporting purposes, adjusted for
income and expense items which are not
assessable or deductible for profits tax

purposes.

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability
method, at the current tax rate, in respect of
significant timing differences between profit as
computed for taxation purposes and profit as
stated in the financial statements, except where
it is considered that no liability will arise in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are not
recognised unless the related benefits are

expected to crystallise in the foreseeable future.

(BBTHBN EBRAAREREL)

2. EEFEREE @)
(d) BEBERWANBRR (F)

e HBWADRESREAESE
EHMHR RO T LA
o BT B H WA R A B LU
ARRMHARIE S T LLEERR -

e FIBURATH AR RS L R A
SHEREARNEFE-

EERSIERRBANBRENMR
ERMOYWE ZRE

(e) B\

REES D ANFEBBEDR
BUBEBRELFTREA BEE
WB L AR TG IRIN 0 X A
HEEmATE.

BEFBEDREREGEE RER
WIER R M BEEA AR B Z
EXBENENBET IR
B IETEERBTERTURE
RER 2B E-BRIEFEFEBEF
BERTERRER FAEL
HEEETTHER-
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TronanTon 'Egﬂ- 5% ﬁ %‘ WH H

— TR (Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (BRBITHEAN SBURARBERHEM)
2. Principal accounting policies (Cont'd) 2. FEEFEE @
(f) Research and development (h MAERRMAE

Research expenditures are written off as
incurred. Development expenditures are written
off as incurred except for those incurred for
specific projects where recoverability can be
~ foreseen with reasonable assurance and which
comply with the following criteria: (i} the
product or process is clearly defined and the
costs attributable to the product or process can
be separately identified and measured reliably;
(ii) the technical feasibility of the product or
process can be demonstrated; (iii) the
enterprise intends to produce and market, or
use, the product or process; (iv) a market exists
for the product or process or, if it is to be used
internally rather than sold, its usefulness to the
enterprise can be demonstrated; and (v)
adequate resources exist, or their availability
can be demonstrated, to complete the project
and market or use the product or process.
Capitalised development expenditures are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period in which the related products are
expected to be sold, starting from the

commencement of sales.

During the year ended 31st December, 2000,
there were no development costs that meet the
capitalisation criteria and consequently all

development costs were expensed as incurred.

Warranty

Provision for warranty costs is recorded based
on management’s estimate of future warranty

liabilities in respect of warranty periods ranging

from one to three years.

MEZEREEE MM -ARX
ERELEMSE EABEEE
EEHEHITSEMERRIER
BETHBEERI () ZER
RIFOLBEERR BHEREM
RATUENRERTETE:
(i) TREZERL T FERM
SEATE i) BRITEEERS
ERXREFEAZERRIIF (iv) &
ERRIFEFEEIHME RUORE
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EHEEHEEEERFEAZER
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BEERBAEEENFEETLE
HER IR EREE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W OWm R W=

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Principal accounting policies (Cont'd)

(h) Employee retirement benefits

(i)

The costs of employee retirement benefits are
recognised as expenses in the period in which

they are incurred.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation. Major expenditures
on modifications and betterments of fixed
assets which will result in future economic
benefits are capitalised, while expenditures on
maintenance and repairs are expensed when
incurred. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis to write off the cost of each asset
over its estimated useful life. The annual rates
of deprecation are as follows:
Machinery and eguipment 10% to 33%
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and
20% to 50%
20%

office equipment

Motor vehicles

Machinery and equipment are subject to
independent valuation on a regular basis. Any
increase in valuation is credited to capital
reserve; any decrease is firstly offset against an
increase on earlier valuation of the same item
of machinery and equipment and is thereafter

charged to the income statement.

2.

FEEFEER B
(h) 1 BB thig#

0]

EEERABFNH AN LR
BARER-

BEEBERINE

EEEERASERFEERAR
ST ESER-AEL A REER
BNERRREIEEEMREL
WEEMITUEREL MESE
NGB EEENRIRNELR

PIFER - BHEENINEDR
RERZFREFAIERFHE
Re-TENFERUT:
HERRE 10%Z 33%
HEWEEE-

BERERLE

1B 20%Z 50%
HE 20%

RERBAEHETHE LG
EMFEBEAET A AERLE
A AR AR ERE TR
—HEBNMREBLEANTEHBE
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{(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Principal accounting pelicies (Cont'd)

(i)

1)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Cont'd)

The carrying value of fixed assets is assessed
periodically or when factors indicating an
impairment are present. Fixed assets carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation are reduced
to the recoverable amount if it is lower than
book value, with the difference charged to the
income statement. In determining the
recoverable amount of items of fixed assets,
expected future cash flows are not discounted

to the present value.

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets
are recognised in the income statement based
on the net disposal proceeds less the carrying

amount of the assets.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated on the
weighted average method of costing and
includes costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course
of business, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and disposal. Provision
is made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective

items where appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

oW R W=

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Principal accounting policies (Cont'd)

)

M

Inventories (Cont'd)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal

QCcCurs.

Operating leases

Operating leases represent those leases under
which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets remain with the
lessors. Rental payments under operating leases
are charged to the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

Foreign currency translation

The Company and its subsidiary maintain their
books and records in Renminbi (“RMB"}.
Transactions in other currencies during the year
are translated into Renminbi at the applicable
rates of exchange prevailing at the time of the
transactions; monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies are translated
into Renminbi at the applicable rates of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in

the income statement.

(BETHAN 2EUARBRERL)

2.

FTEGFHER B

1))

(k)

Ty (&)

FELHER ZEFENREE
REBRANEZNBRIARE
A-FZEMBETEZEFEOR
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BAXHARUERIZRER -85
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ReHE

HEREEREEEREEMNE
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ShuE R E
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2. Principal accounting policies (Cont'd) 2. ETEGHHBE@E

(m) Provisions and contingencies (m) BHEREHKAR

A provision is recognised when there is a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable (i.e.
more likely than not) that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed regularly
and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of
money is material, the amount of a provision is
the present value of the expenditures expected

to be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
financial statements. They are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. A
contingent asset is not recognised in the
financial statements but disclosed when an

inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MO BRNE

{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

(a) Listing of related parties and their
relationships with the Group are as follows:

Name of related party
B AL BB

Peking University

EmEKE

The Institute of Microelectronics

METFBHRM

Beijing Tiangiao Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech
* Company Limited ("Beijing Tiangiao”)

ERABLEAEERNEROERA A
(TEmXELD

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited ("Beida
Jade Bird")

ARIEXRELSEREETQA(NLRERD

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System
Co. ("Jade Bird Software”)

ERFUAEAERBRHEERII ([FHEMLD)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Tian Tong Information
Construction Company Limited ("JBTT")

TREAREERBEEIRERETLT
(TERXRE]D)

Shenzhen Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Jade Bird")
FIMIAAABTRBERERAA

Sichuan Tian Mu Monitored Security
Company Limited (“Tian Mu")
DI XEBEERERLZAKERLAE(TRAD)

Hainan Jade Bird Safeguard Fire Alarm
and Monitor Technologies Company
Limited (“Hainan Jade Bird")

EEERETHIERE
EEgMERLR([BEER])

(BRBEHAN SBUARBBERN)

3. MBALZS

R—FSHEE EEIHMEESS -
FHAREAEE-F2UBREE
REFHEAREEEHERBERA
Tt BHZEATHIAREHNIEX
SE BTRERBEBEAL

(a) HBALTHMEERSASEEY
FAFEIT:

Relationship
B8 1%

The ultimate controlling
shareholder

BRERRRE

A department of Peking
University
tmAREBERZ —

A shareholder of the Company;
also a company controfled
by Peking University

FRARHER TAILRKERE
8RN

A shareholder of the Company;
also a company controlled
by Peking University

ARBRHRE TR RAKEE
R LB

A shareholder of the Company;
also a company controlled
by Peking University

FLENRE THRIEEAKER
g SN

A subsidiary of Beida Jade Bird

EREROIWELH

A subsidiary of Beida Jade Bird
I RXEEWKHE QT

An associated company of
Beida Jade Bird
IEXREENEE L]

An associated company of

Beida Jade Bird

EEXERHNEE QA
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{(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (BRBITHBEIN SHUARBBER)

3. Related party transactions (Cont'd) 3. BEBAXTXS (&)
(b) Particulars of significant transactions (b) FAREBBMALZEMNEXRS
between the Company and related parties SELEIN T :

are summarised below:

RMB’000 2000 1999
ARETFTT - o2 —AhAE
B Sales of embedded systems BTHEFHEEHRAR
products and provision of REEMRREHEZE
total solution services to: BREERS: ’
- Peking University — R K 953 -
- Beijing Tiangiao ~dRXE 2,581 -
- JBTT ~ERXE 46 -
- Tian Mu ~XE 15,000 -
- Hainan Jade Bird ~-B=mER 6,000 -
24,580 -
Purchase of inventories from MIEREBBAESR
Beijing Tianqgiao 745 -
Royalty fee for the Global oM AL RERXE
Positioning System technology B2 EREAY R AR
paid/payable to Beijing Tiangiac* BEHM B A~ 713 -
Rental expense for premises B EAILERESR
paid/payable to Beida Jade Bird ¥ ¥ & &M - 416
Rental expense for equipment 2 BB TFE
paid/payable to The Institute of MRFRERESER
Microelectronics** 892 - ‘
Rental income for equipment 2l ERMEFZ
received/receivable from The MEFTREEE
Institute of Microelectronics** W A *= 893 -
* Pursuant to the technology license * RIBFFLERIEAXBER-E
agreement between the Company and FEFMA+ LR BRI
Beijing Tiangiao dated 17th April, 2000, 1BEFRIGE LR XEEEXLT
Beijing Tiangiao granted an exclusive license R —BREREGHE RHAFA
to the Company for the use of certain Global 20MIB R A BN D IRENFEL
Positioning System technology applying B BETE BRNERBRE
230m frequency band for ten years, in return BEEMNBE B EEHA3%

for a royalty fee of 3% on the sales of the
products using this technology.
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BB m R W=

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions (Cont'd)

(b)

Particulars of significant transactions
between the Company and related parties
are summarised below: (Cont'd)

**  Pursuant to the equipment lease agreement
between the Company and The Institute of
Microelectronics dated 17th April, 2000, The
Institute of Microelectronics leased certain
equipment to the Company for five years at a
rate of RMB120 per hour, and the Company
leased certain equipment to the Institute of
Microelectronics for five years at an annual
fee of RMB1,260,000.

Pursuant to the JB-CASE technology license
agreement and trademark license agreement
between the Company and Jade Bird Software,
Jade Bird Software granted to the Company a
non-exclusive license to use the JB-CASE
technology and certain of its trademarks for ten

years at nil consideration.

During the year ended 31st December, 2000,
Beida Jade Bird provided certain office space
to the Company at nil consideration.

(BBEHAN SEUAREBER)
3. MBALZZ (|

(b)

FRABRHBABMALTZEANERR
GRMENT: &)

> RIER LD G E TR EAT
R-EERFEFOAF+EHTY
HREHEGSE WMEFENR
FEEQERRGHELETRE
BHAE S)EREARKE
120 7T MR 2 GBI e 8 F &
HEFELEFRE BHFA
F FWREANRH,260,0005T °

BREALTRBEERGFT LN
JB-CASER M EHEREZ
BHERE ERREBRERLT
LU A 1B HEAIB-CASER
MRETEENEBRISHE
BEtTE

REBEE_F2FF+_-_F=+-—
EEFE-LAXAERUEHARN
MR RPETFTHRLIERE-

e I L P Fanlo So
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

3. Related party transactions (Cont'd) 3.

included in the balance sheet are the

(c)

following balances with related parties:

oW OBk W

(BBTHRBI GEUAREREN)

(c)

RBALR S (8

THMT:

EEERERPHEBABRALGRES

Consolidated Company
RE AT
RMB’000 2000 1999 2000
AR®FT ZEETE —NANhE ZFEEEHE
Accounts receivable from FEUL T B & FERFK
— The Institute -WETE
of Microelectronics R AR 248 - 248
- Beijing Tianqgiao —dERERXE 3,091 - 3,091
- Beida Jade Bird - LtXER 459 - 459
- Hainan Jade Bird - BEEE 6,000 - 6,000
9,798 - 9,798
Accounts payable to BET &SRR
— Shenzhen Jade Bird -RIYBEB 315 - 315
- Peking University —dmEARE 42 - 42
357 - 357
Deferred revenue from BT FMNIELEWSS
~ Tian Mu N = - 10,000 -
- Peking University —dEKRE - 760 -
- 10,760 -

The above balances with related parties resulted
from transactions in the ordinary course of business
and were unsecured, non-interest bearing and

subject to settlements according to payment terms

set out in the respective agreements.

Bl A T NEREERBE EEER
BRETVXE LEHAEER T
B XIRE BB AT RURF S T
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N (Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (BRBITHBM SHUARE BEN)

4. Turnover and Revenue 4. BEBRRUAN
Analysis of turnover and revenue in the consolidated SREERRANEFRBARBASHT
income statement is as follows: T
RMB’000 2000 1999
AR¥TT —ZEEEE —AALE
Analysed by nature of sales: HHEEESH:
0 Sales of embedded systems HERAXNERS
and products REG 13,388 711
Provision of total solution services RHEZEBRIERE 47,455 9,708
Total turnover AR 60,843 10,419
““““““““ | Analysed by product category: BREMBENSH:
Global Positioning System E2HRENER »
application systems i 22,563 163
Network security products PAHEERREM 22,043 6,066
Wireless fire alarm systems EREBRERAS 6,621 1,031
Application specific integrated EAEREBR
circuits 6,287 683
Smart card application systems HAEER RS 3,329 2,476
Total turnover mEEs 60,843 10,419
Interest income LN SR N 6,726 13
‘ Total revenue g A\ 67,569 10,432
All of the Group’s turnover was derived from FEEEHLEEESREETPEAE
operations conducted in Mainland China. FREEE N HTS-
For the year ended 31st December, 2000, the largest HE-ZEZTF+-A=+—HLE
and five largest customers accounted for B BARBREFFBNLEAER
approximately 23.4% and 65.8% (1999 — 69.1% and EEEEN234%R658% (— AN AE
93.1%), respectively, of the Group's turnover. —69.1%K93.1%) °
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

BHRAARM (BE)
FRERERANBARR (FE) B

5. Profit (Loss) before taxation 5.

Profit (Loss) before taxation in the consolidated

income statement was determined after charging MRS AT &R
or crediting the following items:
RMB’000 2000 1999
AR¥TT —SEEH —hAAE
After charging - 2k -
Research and development

expenditures MEEBAREZE 8,919 4718
Operating lease rental of premises #EZLEHERS 1,393 569
Operating lease rental of equipment J[HEZLEEHERS 892 -
Royalty fee BXER 713 430
Provision for warranty RISHEE - 500
Exchange loss ERBK 209 -
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEEFRE 2,960 1,262
Loss on disposal of fixed assets EERTEERX 104 133
Auditors’ remuneration BT 1,000 -
After crediting — 2atA -
Interest income from bank deposits SHBITERR B YA 6,726 13
Operating lease rental income of

equipment HREzEEHEERSRA 893 -
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Col - A

(BSTHEN eRUARRBEN)

6. Directors’, supervisors’ and senior 6. EF - ESERSHITHAGSEHSE
executives’ emoluments
(a) Details of emoluments paid/payable to (a) Bt EBRFELIESETRES
directors and supervisors of the Company HMEERENT:
were:
RMB'000 2000 1999
AR¥FT —_EBEE —ARAAE
Executive directors HITES
Fees wE - —
Other emoluments Hit®E
— basic salaries and allowances —~-BEARFERIBR 1,350 380
-~ bonus* — A %00 -
Non-executive directors EHITESE
Fees e 106 25
Other emoluments Hiws
— basic salaries, bonus and - EXR¥FgE LA
allowances J59= 3 - -
Supervisors =
Fees Be 42 -
Other emoluments Hiuiie
- basic salaries, bonus and —EAEFE TEA
allowances RIREE 85 -
2,483 405
* The directors’ bonus was calculated at * BEENIEARKEEBREATY

REREAE B FIF 3% B - RIF
ARAREBITEEZ BIAR
BEH XREHITEELTEN
BT 2 REHREAFTRIH 51 &
T ZREBRITEAL

approximately 3% of profit attributable to
shareholders before the provision of such bonus.
Pursuant to the service contracts between the
Company and its executive directors, the
Company's executive directors were entitled to
bonus of not more than 5% of profit after

taxation before the provisioin of such bonus.

RER ESTNESHMERES
NS -RERN FEBEILEGE
ERESXITREMEARE:
ERMATRBEZRESFRER
B

No directors or supervisors waived any
emolument during the year. No incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation
for loss of office was paid or payable to any

directors or supervisors for the year.
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(RETHFAI TERARBREN)

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

6. Directors’, supervisers’ and senior
executives' emoluments (Cont’d)

(a) Details of emoluments paid/payable to
directors and supervisors of the Company
were: {Cont'd)

(2) Bt ENFFERAEERE
HMBEHEENT: (8

Analysis of directors’ and supervisors’ REEREZEABRHEEHE
emoluments by number of directors and APNNEESRESHESNT:
supervisors, and emolument ranges is as
follows:
2000 1999
—FEEE —ARAE

Nil to RMB1,070,000 (equivalent of AR#ZTTZE AX#1,070,0007T

HK$1,000,000)

(#941,000,0005% 7T)

— Executive directors —HITES 5 5
— Non-executive directors —EHITES 5 5
- Supervisors —E= 5

15 15

(b) Details of emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and
other employees) were:

(b) INEEHFMAL (BRESER
HiER) zBEFBEMT:

RMB’000 2000 1999

ARBEFT —_ESEHF —hWANE

Basic salaries and allowances EXEF B IERL 1,693 435

Bonus TE &L 720 -

2,413 435

Number of directors BEEAH 4 3
Number of employees BEAH 1
5

During the year, no emoluments were paid to
the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

The emolument of the five highest paid
individuals falls within the range of Nil to
RMB1,070 ,000 {equivalent of HK$1,000,000).
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Taxation

(a)

(c)

Enterprise income tax (“EIT")

The Company, being located in the Beijing New
Technology Development Experimental Area
and registered as a New and High Technology
Enterprise, is subject to Mainland China EIT at
a rate of 15%. It is exempted from EIT for three
years starting from Year 2000, its first operating
year, followed by a 50% reduction of EIT from
the fourth to the sixth year.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was
made as the Group had no profits subject to

Hong Kong profits tax.

Value-added tax ("VAT"”)

The Company is subject to VAT in Mainland
China levied at the rate of 17% on the amount
of sales of its products as well as provision of
processing, repairs and replacement services in
Mainland China. VAT paid on the Company’s
purchases may be used to offset VAT on the

sales amount to arrive at the net VAT payable.

In addition, the Company is entitled to refund
of actual VAT paid exceeding 3% of the sales

amount of certain approved software products.

Business tax

The Company is subject to Mainland China
business tax on the provision of maintenance,
support and training services in Mainland China

at a rate of 5% on the related revenue.

(BRBTRPBIN 2BUARERBEM)

7. HIE

(a) EEFEH

25 B B Al 3 T T B E SR B
BEBE XCOEMBEH B
R BRAZTEAEDSEMRSE
WHMER1S% - E-BREFE
HWEBAEEFER=FRB0Dx
FrEH HEENEEAFRE

HH50% R B o

HRCEELERERETBREGH
ZEA WL EELFTBRER

2R

(b)y WBEH

ERREABRTRABREEE
RoEMNT-EERERRER

BOBER17% - AQATRIRBE
PR 2 BER AT AMGEES
WAZBERFEAN UEERE

T ERFE-

o A BESE TEH BN
HERHEEL TEERDEBE

EBEI%RMETIRER-

(c) EXE#H

LB EREFERERMS
& =R RFIRBRB A AR

BRSO EER -

g
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Taxation (Cont'd)

The Company's principal activities are sales of
embedded systems products and provision of total
solution services through application of its
embedded systems products. The respective
turnover taxes, including business tax and value-
added tax, applicable to the Company are described
above. According to the tax rules and regulations
in Mainland China, when there is uncertainty as to
whether value-added tax or business tax should be
applied to service income generated by a primary
VAT payer, the relevant state tax bureau is
authorised to determine the appropriate turnover
tax. During the year ended 31st December, 2000,
contracts with total sales value of approximately
RMB36 million were considered by the Company
and Haidian Local Tax Bureau to be subject to
business tax but not VAT, and accordingly, business
tax at 5% of the said value was paid. Management
has obtained a verbal consent from the Haidian
State Tax Bureau that these transactions are subject
to business tax. However, there is a contingent
liability that if higher tax authorities eventually
determine that VAT is the appropriate tax for these
contracts, the Company may be required to pay
additional turnover tax of approximately RMB4.3
million in respect of the above revenues. Taking into
consideration of the common practice of paying the
relevant taxes in Mainland China, the management
considers the possibility of paying additional

turnover tax is remote.
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(BETHERPI - EEAARERERD)

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Profit attributable to shareholders

During the year ended 31st December, 2000, the
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders
included a profit of approximately RMB31,091,0C0
dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

Earnings (Loss) per share

The calculation of earnings per share for the year
ended 31st December, 2000 was based on the profit
attributable to shareholders of approximately
RMB31,067,000 (1999 - loss of approximately
RMB4,486,000) and on the weighted average number
of approximately 812,721,000 shares (1999 -
700,000,000 shares) in issue during the year,
according to the basis of presentation described in
Note 1 and adjusted for the effect of the subdivision
of shares made by the Company in December 2000
(see Note 15(c)).

No diluted earnings per share was presented as
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares

outstanding.

BRREEGERN

REE-EEEF+-B=+—-81t
FE RREGESBEINEBEFSQT
BMEBRRPFITHENNARR
31,091,000t °

sBRAEF (BR)

HE_ZZEF+_/=+—ALF
ENESRENDRERREGERERN
A R#31,067,000t (— A AL AE -
BEOARS4,486,0005T) RIZMEE
TN EREETRATAR-EE
EFET BB OFRANEE
(ZBHMF 15 FTENFRE#®IT
NAEE 5 R 8812,721,00088 (— AN
H & —700,000,00088 ) 5+ E -

ERYEECTTEE-CBRITER
BARYEIRSREEER-

Saiainlnlioleintole

et e e Ty Company Lim < o

[ANNUAL REPORT RO &8 | 89



Notes to the Financial Statements

STNROCIENAnNnran 'Eijj. 77% ﬁ %‘\E‘ ﬂzﬁr %EE

e AN -
{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (RS THAAIN 2FUARE BEN)

ey g fopin ] L e o

10. Fixed assets 10. EBEEE

Movements of fixed assets (Consolidated and EEEE (REeRQF) NWEHUT:

Company) were:

2000 1999

g 2:2 33 -AALE
Leasehold
improvements
furniture and

office '

Machinery  equipment

and BENE Motor
RMB'000 equipment £ FHER vehicles Total Total
ARETR BEREE BLERE "E chl &3t
Cost or Valuation RERFGE
Beginning of year £4 18,522 895 571 19,988 10,11
Additions m 1,861 2,605 - 4,466 1,139
Revaluation it - - - - 8,996
Disposals EE (172) - - (172) (258)
End of year EX 20,211 3,500 571 24,282 19,988
Representing: fix:
At cost BRERFE 2,840 3,500 571 6,91 2,617
At professional valuation RE£E 17,371 - - 17,3711 17,371
20211 3,500 571 24,282 19,988 ‘
Accumulated depreciation EHE
- Beginning of year £q {11,134} {155) {219) {11,508) (3,927}
B Provision for the year rEERE {2,301 (546) 113) (2,960} (1,262)
- Revaluation i - - - - (6,388)
N Disposals EE 68 - - 68 69
End of year EX (13,367 (701) (332) (14,400} (11,508)
Net book value EEFE
End of year £X 6,844 2,799 239 9,882 8,480
Beginning of year £4] 7,388 740 352 8,480 6,184
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{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

10. Fixed assets (Cont'd)

11.

As required by the laws and regulations in Mainland
China relating to reorganisation involving state-
owned assets, machinery and equipment of the
predecessor entities were transferred to the
Company at the appraised values as at 31st
December, 1999. The appraisal was performed by
CIECC Assets
independent qualified appraiser in Mainland China,

Appraisal Corporation, an
taking into consideration the then replacement
costs, physical condition, remaining useful lives and

other relevant factors.

Investment in subsidiary

In the Company’'s balance sheet, investment in

subsidiary consisted of:

10. BIE & & (8#)

11.

ERAEAREERSREEEEEED
ERERER-IIEEBOEBERR
BHE-ANAAETZR=+—8H
FREEEET AR FIEETEKN
EEVSERMMENMTEEEMNRES
BITET -EHFIEET CEREE
ERNEENT BEEMRR RGBT
AERREMBEREE-

RERMEB 27

RARBEEABREL RERNWE
~EeRE:

RMB'000 2000
AR¥EF T —ETETH
Unlisted shares XLTREG 1

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiary as at 31st

December, 2000 were as follows:

RIBREEF+ _A=Z+—BARQA
HEEBAREBWOT:

Percentage of

equity interest

Place of attributable to

incorporation and Paid-up the group

operations capital KEBMEL
Company name AR ILE HE A Principal activities
KR BEwE & Bl TEEH
Beida Jade Bird Universal Cayman lslands/ Us$1 100% Technology research,
Sci-Tech (Cayman) Hong Kong 2R development and
Development Company Heng 58 sale of integrated
Limited circuits and related
LAEERF (HE) products
BRAERLH ERERREHERY
BHiHR - REREE
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B FITHBIN SHEUARE BE[)

12. Inventories 12. &
Inventories consisted of: FEBFE:
Consolidated Company
=a UNES]
RMB’'000 2000 1999 2000
ARBFT —EERE —hAAAE ZFTETEH
Raw materials B AR 1,118 690 1,118
Work-in-progress on contracts EEMREE
for total solution services EHMEEITRIER 1,502 928 1,502
Finished goods Efm 349 354 349
2,969 1,972 2,969
13. Prepayments and other current assets 13. BT REMTEEE
Prepayments and other current assets consisted of: BRERREMRBHEESRE:
Consolidated Company
RE AN
RMB'000 2000 1999 2000
AR FT _EETE —NAAAE ZEBEEEH
Prepayment for purchase of BB EMEIRRY
materials* 16,821 - 16,821
Interest receivable EWR 2 3,665 - 3,665
VAT recoverable o R B E B 838 - 838
Others HAi 560 317 584
Total &5t 21,884 317 21,908
* Prepayment for purchase of materials included * EEMENACREERBERRE
RMB15,921,000 for the purchase of spare parts of YFERRSEHH ARN15921,000
Global Positioning System application systems. JTe
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{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14 HiZE B
BRBREE:

14. Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of:

Consolidated Company
g8 AN
RMB'000 2000 1999 2000
AR®F T —ERTE —AAAE —_BTEE
Salary and welfare payable BEAHTRER 3,810 560 3,810
Directors’ bonus payable EESBEA 200 - 900
Others Hi 1,093 310 1,093
5,803 870 5,803
15. Share capital 15. B4
During the year ended 31st December, 2000, MNEE-_SEEEF+=-A=+—-81L
movements of the Company's registered and issued FEARANERRSBITRSE
capital were as follows: SR
Number of Nominal
shares value Percentage
lHmEA [ Bt
'000 RMB'000
FIE OARBTR
lssuance of promoter shares in BEATBEmMBBITH
connection with the R AR D (a)
Reorganisation (a) 70,000 70,000 72.6%
Issuance of overseas public shares 17840 R
(H Shares) (b) B4 (HR) (b) 26,400 26,400 27.4%
Shares subdivision (c) BR 2374 (o) 867,600 - -
End of year FR 964,000 96,400 100.0%
Notes — BaE -

(a}  Upon incorporation, the Company's registered share
capital amounted to RMB70,000,000, divided into
70,000,000 shares of RMB1 each.

(a) FALEREMAZEMNGZEMEBASA
B #570,000,0005T » 7 2 70,000,00082
AEAR¥EITHRG.
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{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (BRBITHBEN 2BUARB REN)

L I I T e

red e Cpeee

15. Share capital (Cont'd) 15. B 7~ (8)

(b)  On 15th July, 2000, the Company's registered share
capital was authorised to increase from
RMB70,000,000 to RMB94,000,000, divided into
70,000,000 promoter shares of RMB1 each and
24,000,000 H Shares (excluding an over-allotment
option of 2,400,000 H Shares) of RMB1 each, ranking
pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares,
and the Company was authorised to allot and issue
additional 2,400,000 H Shares of RMB1 each
according to the market demand. Subsequently,
24,000,000 H Shares and 2,400,000 H Shares were
placed with professional, institutional and other
investors on 26th July, 2000 and 15th August, 2000,
respectively, at HK$11 per share,

{c) With effect from 18th December, 2000, each of the
Company's shares with nominal value of RMB1 was
subdivided into ten shares of RMBQ.1 each.

. Share options

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
5th July, 2000, pursuant to which the board of
directors of the Company may, at its discretion,
grant options to any full-time employees of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company, to a
maximum of 30% of the Company's shares in issue
at the date of grant. The exercise price will be
determined by the board of directors, and will not
be less than the higher of: (a) the nominal value of
a H Share; (b) the average closing price of the H
Shares quoted on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the options; or (c) the closing price
of the H Shares quoted on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the options, which
must be a business day as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules. However, employees who are Chinese
nationals in Mainland China shall not be entitled to
exercise the option until the current restrictions on
these persons for subscribing or dealing in H Shares
imposed by the laws and regulations in Mainland

China have been amended or removed.

For the year ended 31st December, 2000, no options
were granted tc the Group's employees.
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (B S1T#HMEIN 2MUARYE BER)
17. Reserves 17. %
Movements were: 285
2000 1999
ZE%%% -hAANE
Share  Capital Statutory Retained
RMB 000 premium  reserve  reserves Dividends  earnings Total Total
ARETT BhiEE EX0®  EERE RE BHKE ch) EL
Consolidated g8
Beginning of year FO6E - 11,379 - - - 11,379 13,257
Surplus on revaluation BETEE
of fixed assets HheE - - - - - - 2,608
Effect of the Reorganisation EAHE - (18,810) - - - (18,810 -
(Note 1) (B 1)
Premium on issuance of BAHRER
H Shares 281,964 - - - - 281,964 -
Share issuance expenses BORGER  (30,4693) - - - - (30,693} -
Profit (Loss) attributable to  BR B4
shareholders BR(B8) - - - - 31,067 31,067 (4,4864)
Transfer to reserves BARE - 7431 4,664 - (12,095) - -
Proposed dividend BREE - - - 4,820 (4,820) - -
End of year EXBE 251,271 - 4,664 4,820 14,152 274,907 ny9
Company N
Beginning of year ENBE - 11,379 - - - 11,379
Surplus on revaluation of  BIZEE
fixed assets HFiERE - - - - - -
Effect of the Reorganisation EHHE - (18,810) - - - (18,810)
(Note 1) (W& 1)
Premium on issuance of BOHREE
H Shares 281,964 - - - - 281,964
Share issuance expenses BERHER  (30,693) - - - - (30,493}
Profit attributable to BREL
shareholders 27 - - - - 31,01 31,091
Transfer to reserves BARE - 743 4 664 - {12,095) -
Proposed dividend B E - - - 4,820 (4,820) -
End of year ERHE 251,271 - 4,664 4,820 14,176 274,931
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

17. Reserves (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Capital reserve

1999
represented the net book value of the assets
and liabilities that were transferred to the
Company by the predecessor entities.

The reserve as at 31st December,

In accordance with a resolution of an extra-
ordinary shareholders’ meeting held in July
2000, RMB7,431,000 was transferred from
retained earnings to capital reserve.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the laws and regulations in
Mainland China and the Company’s articles of
association, the Company is required to
appropriate 10% and 5% of its profit after
taxation, after offsetting any prior years' losses,
to the statutory surplus reserve and statutory
public welfare fund, respectively, When the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches
50% of the Company's share capital; any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to offset prior years' losses,
if any, and may be converted into share capital
by issuing new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholding or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently
held by them, provided that the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve after
such issue is not less than 25% of share capital.
The statutory public welfare fund can only be
utilised on capital items for the collective
benefits of the Company's employees, such as
construction of dormitories, canteen and other
staff welfare facilities, the title to which remains
with the Company. This fund is non-
distributable other than in liquidation. For the
year ended 371st December, 2000,
approximately RMB3,109,000 and RMB1,555,000
have been appropriated to statutory surplus
reserve and statutory welfare fund, respectively.
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{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

17. Reserves (Cont'd)

18.

{c) Basis for profit appropriations

Appropriations to statutory reserves are
determined based on the financial statements
prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards and regulations applicable in
Mainland China.

In addition, in accordance with the Company's
articles of association, the Company declares
dividends based on the lower of retained
earnings as reported in accordance with the
accounting standards and regulations
applicable in Mainland China and those
reported in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong, after
deduction of the current year's appropriations
to the reserves. The difference between these
two amounts as at 31st December, 2000 was

not material.

Retirement benefits

The Company has participated in defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by local
government authorities in Mainland China. All of
the Mainland China employees are entitled to an
annual pension equal to a fixed portion of their basic
salaries at their retirement dates. The Company is
required to make contributions to the retirement
schemes at a rate of 19% of the basic salary of its
Mainland China employees and has no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits. The
retirement plan contributions paid/payable for the
year ended 31st December, 2000 pursuant to these
approximately

arrangements amounted to

RMB1,099,000 (1999 -RMB574,000).

(RBTHAN 2BEUAREBEN

17. /% (88)

(c) PIBSEmMER

RIGEERBREBEERPEX
EERANETTERREAFER
N BEERMEE-

b REARLEHLTER X
PAIRHBAEEZREEER
B-ARERTEREERNS
ZRIRBRESB AT ERA
RBEZEFREEEEERR
B-R-BEZEZEF+-/=+—
H-EZMEZEBELFEKR

18. IRk #&E 7

FABSRT -EHAPEKNELSR
RS S ERMBRATE A
TEEESSEERSHEENEENKR
ZERNTEZEELHERRES-
FLBARRTERBEERATENIS
$9 3B R BT BI AL RN BR L 36 B H AR IR 4K
BEAEE-REZSZHE REEC
ZEREFTAZ+T—RALEEEHN
SENZEATEERABAR
1,099,000t (— AN AFE-ARE
574,0007T) °
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19. Housing fund

In accordance with the housing reform regulations
in Mainland China, the Company is required to make
contributions to the state-sponsored housing fund
at 10% of the specified salary amount of the
Mainland China employees. At the same time, the
employees are required to make a contribution
equal to the Company’s contributions out of their
payroll. The employees are entitled to claim the
entire sum of the fund under certain specified
withdrawal circumstances. The Company has no
further obligation for housing benefits beyond the
above contributions. For the year ended 31st
December, 2000, the Company contributed
approximately RMBS579,000 (1999 - RMB302,000) to
the fund.
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20. Segment information 20. EER
Consolidated
L EE
RMB'000 2000 1999
AR¥TFx ZEREE —AhhE
Turnover EER
Glebal Positioning System BEREN
application systems ERZEES 22,563 163
Network security products HEEZEER 22,043 6,066
Wireless fire alarm systems BEHGRERE 6,621 1,031
Application specific integrated ERENER
‘ circuits 6,287 683
Smart card application systems BB AL 3,329 2,476
60,843 10,419
Profit (Loss) attributable REFEEERF
to shareholders (& 18)
Global Positioning System 2IREN
application systems EBRELE 19,161 (3,120)
Network security products WEE2ER 6,179 476
Wireless fire alarm systems HEEHIEBRERSR 4,775 (340)
Application specific integrated ERERER
circuits 3,258 (1,296)
Smart card application systems BPAEERRAS (1,005) (219)
Unallocated corporate expenses ENEIR H: NCT R = g (7,818) -
Interest income FE R A 6,726 13
Exchange loss EHIBX (209) -
31,067 (4,486)
Depreciation of fixed assets EE&HEIRE
‘ Global Positioning System EHREAN
application systems ERELS 394 186
Network security products HEZEER 279 108
Wireless fire alarm systems ESEBRERLS 55 117
Application specific integrated EAERER
circuits 1,766 851
Smart card application systems REEERAR 39 -
Corporate office TR 427 -
2,960 1,262
Capital expenditures (purchase BARAZH(BA
of fixed assets) Bx&E)
Global Positioning System 2HEN
application systems EREL 73 894
Network security products FRREER 1,221 191
Wireless fire alarm systems ERHBRERLS 29 28
Application specific integrated EASENER
circuits 329 26
Smart card application systems B EARLS 2 -
Corporate office DE AR 2,812 -
4,466 1,139
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{Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (BRBITHBEI S BWUARBBEN)

20. Segment information (Cont'd) 20. o EER (&)
Consolidated Company
S8 28
RMB'000 2000 1999 2000
AR#F T ZEETE —hAhAAhE ZFEFTEH
Assets BE
Global Positioning System EHREN
application systems EBRZESS 19,875 12,613 19,875
Network security products REZETER 12,904 1,166 12,904
Wireless fire alarm systems BEREFRERERR 6,294 2,656 6,294
Application specific integrated ERERER .
circuits 11,974 8,123 11,974
Smeart card application systems  BBBEEREL 1,136 1,741 1,136
Unallocated corporate assets A 2B
LEEE 334,617 - 334,641
386,800 26,299 386,824
Liabilities B8H
Global Positioning System EHEM
application systems ERARE 1,807 10,519 1,807
Network security products WEZTETER 5,849 2,435 5,849
Wireless fire alarm systems BRHEFRERS 651 1,742 651
Application specific integrated EREREE
circuits 1,097 36 1,097
Smart card application systems  HRBEIEERRE 2,378 188 2,378
Unallocated corporate liabilities 7~ 7] 7 & #9
LEBE 3,711 - 3,711
15,493 14,920 15,493
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (PR BITHEHN SBUARE BER)

21. Notes to the cash flow statement 21 REREHRFMHE
{a) Reconciliation of profit (loss) before taxation (a) HaT&EH (HHE) ATEFIR
to net cash (outflow) inflow from operating E (R mAFBEROAS
activities
RMB'000 2000 1999
ARBETF T —EBTH —NANE
Profit (Loss) before taxation BAIEA (F8) 31,067 (4,486)
. Interest income FE W A (6,726) (13)
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEENE 2,960 1,262
Loss on disposal of fixed assets BEEBEEEBX 104 133
Provision for warranty ISR HE - 500
Increase in inventories FEEMN (997) (920)
(Increase) Decrease in prepayments BT R E R E)
and other current assets BE OGBM B (17,902) 4,635
Increase in accounts receivable & Y4 B8R FX 3L fn (19,841) (2,428)
Increase in accounts payable FE A< 3R R 38 ho 3,831 741
Increase in accrued liabilities FEIEB R 4,933 354
(Decrease) Increase in deferred ELZ W& GRD) 1B
revenue (9,757) 11,282
Net cash (outflow) inflow RETERS
from operating activities R RAFH (12,328) 11,060
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(BBTHAN 2BEUAREBELD)

P

(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

21. Notes to the cash flow statement (Cont'd) 21, BeErsd s @

(b} Loans &:;

(b)

During the year ended 31st December, 2000,
the Company advanced loans (denominated in
Hong Kong dollar) totalling of approximately
RMB19.3 million, including approximately
RMB10.7 million to an independent third party
and approximately RMB8.6 million to a director
of Beida Jade Bird. These loans bore interest
at Hong Kong prime lending rate plus 1%,
unsecured and repayable within one to three
months. These loans were repaid before 31st
December, 2000.

Subsequent to 31st December, 2000, the
Company advanced loans {denominated in
Hong Kong dollar) totalling of approximately
RMB15 million to the above mentioned third
party. These loans bore interest at Hong Kong
prime lending rate plus 1%, unsecured and

repayable in three months.
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

21. Notes to the cash flow statement (Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

Analysis of changes in financing during the

=

(RBTHFN EEUAARBREM

21, HEREBRME (&)
(c) FHRRMEZDSH

year
2000 1999
“TTTH —hAANRE
Capital
reserve/
Share
Share premium
RMB'000 capital EELE Total Total
ARETR BE BHEE &% &5t
Balance as at W—BR—B2&8HE - 11,379 11,379 13,257
st January
Net cash inflow from BRERERANFE
financing
~ contribution by -BEANHEH

promoteres (2 RHz=21d

(see Note 21(d))
— issuance of H Shares - BITHR
Surplus on revaluation of BEEEEFEEE

))

70,000 (18,810) 51,190 -
26,400 251,271 277,671 -

fixed assets - - - 2,608
Transfer from retained BEREUHBA

earnings (see Note 17(a)) (2 RHsE17() - 7,431 7,431 (4,486)
Balance as at W+=ZB=+-8

31st December ZEAEE 96,400 251,271 347,671 11,379

Contribution by promoters in connection

with the Reorganisation

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company
was incorporated with a registered capital of
RMB70,000,000, of which approximately
RMB 18,810,000 of the capital paid up by the
predecessor entities were applied towards
settlement of the consideration for the transfer
to the Company of the assets, liabilities and
businesses of these predecessor entities.
Accordingly, the net cash contribution by the
promoters amountd to approximately
RMB51,190,000.

(d) REETHMNBERAZEE

RIBEAR NOTREMEILE
HEMESRS ARBT0,000,000
T HFH AR 18,810,000
HA BB IENELNERSE
BUHENIXEBNEE ABER
EBWRE-AUBERANIE
AR AR®ES1,190,0005T
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi uniess otherwise stated) (BRRITHBEN SHEUARERER)

21. Notes to the cash flow statement (Cont'd) 21. BEeEnEaRRmaE @
(e) Cash and cash equivalents (e) RERREEEY
Cash and cash equivalents is analysed as REeRBREEBYHOSNAT:
follows:
RMB'000 2000 1999
AREFT _TTEE —AANE
Cash and bank deposits BERBVBITER 327,469 12,341 '
Less: Bank deposits with maturity B =@ B L E#
over three months RITER (212,280) -
Cash and cash equivalents HeREBESEE 115,189 12,341
22. Commitments 22, REEIE
As at 31st December, 2000, the Group had operating R-ZIEEEFE+A=+—H K&
lease commitments in respect of premises under BEZETIRENSEHEDED
various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. MHELEAEAR URBUHEHS
The amounts payable under these agreements are WEMFRESITAET:

analysed as follows:

RMB’000 Consolidated Company

AR¥FT BE VAR
Amounts payable within R ER RS ‘

- one year -—fR 1,433 1,433

- between one to two years - —FEZWF 824 824

- between two to five years -MEZEF 13 13

2,270 2,270
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(Amounts expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Commitments (Cont'd)

The commitments payable within the next twelve

(BRBTHAN 2BERARBBEL)

22 REEE (5
ERRTZERMEMEEDH N

months are analysed as follows: :
RMB’000 Consolidated Company
AR® T o=y 2 F
Leases expiring within a period HNEEESNESR
- not exceeding one year - THBB-F 364 364
— within one to two years ——EFEWF 1,046 1,046
- within two to five years -MEEREF 23 23
1,433 1,433
Subsequent events 23. SR

On 28th March, 2001, the Board of Directors
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMB0.005
per share (including promoter shares and H Shares),
totalling approximately RMB4,820,000, in respect of
the year ended 31st December, 2000. The proposed
dividend is subject to approval by the Company’s

shareholders in general meeting.

R-ZZEZE-F=ZR=+N\E -EES
ERRBEE_FEEF+-RA=T
—BLEEESRKRAR®0.005TH R
BEHEREARGRHR) HFH
B AR 4,820,0007T ° 7% H K B B 14
#HLAARREASHE
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NOTICE

Notice of Annual General Meeting
R HEFE X g8 &

IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 2000 annual

general meeting ("AGM") of Beijing Beida Jade Bird

Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited ("the Company”)

will be held at Granville Room, Lower Lobby, Conrad

Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong

on Tuesd

ay, 29th May, 2001 at 10:00a.m. for the following

purposes:—

I.  As ordinary resolutions:

To consider and approve the Report of the
Directors for the year 2000;

To consider and approve the Report of the

Supervisory Committee for the year 2000;

To consider and approve the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year

2000;

To consider and approve the final dividend

distribution proposal for the year 2000;

To consider and approve the appropriations to
statutory surplus reserve and statutory public
welfare fund for the year 2000;

To consider the reappointment of Arthur
Andersen & Co as auditors for the year 2007
and to authorize the Directors to fix their

remuneration;
To consider and approve the remuneration for
Directors and Supervisors of the Company for

the year 2001,

To transact any other businesses.
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As special resolutions:

To consider and approve the renewal of the
resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company an 5th July, 2000 and subject to and
conditional upon approval of and permission
to deal with the H Shares in the share capital
of the Company, which are intended to be
issued by the Company, by the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and approval of the
resolution by the China Securities Regulatory
Committee, a mandate is to be given to the

board of Directors:

(a) to place and/or issue Domestic Shares and/
or H Shares within a period of twelve
months from the date of the resoclution
provided that the number of Domestic
Shares and/or H Shares to be placed and/
or issued shall not exceed 20 per cent. of
the numbers of Domestic Shares and H
Shares separately then in issue (“20 per

cent. limit");

(b) to decide within the 20 per cent. limit the

number of Domestic Shares and/or H
Shares to be placed and/or issued and to
deal with matters arising out of and
incidental to such placement and/or issue

of new Shares; and

(c) to make such necessary amendments to
articles 17, 18 and 21 of the Articles of
Association to reflect changes in the share
capital of the Company arising out of such

placement and/or issue of Shares;

PN

el iy A e

. BB ABRBBENSER

BIEERIEA D R RER
BEFCARBR@BZ—
REHNEEEE B
ZEFBERABDEERETE
SHAERDQARBITHAQLT
BAERHHEETREERTR
BEESHER RTEEE -
R

= i}
R-ZEE
ES

(a) BARBEBHEBHT=E
BEEREREER BT
RERR HRHR EEF
BER "HBGTZRER
R/SHBRZBE FBEB
ERNERRAIERBEZE
AT B B 20% ([ 20%FR
)

(b) BL20%PREARIR HBEET
HMER HBITZ2RER
E7SEHBR2EE URE
BRERER HBITEE
FRMOMEERE2EEH
Z2EE R

() HORMABERMBIE 7 -
E18RFB2IGFHFHLEZ
B URMADBREAEH
ZHERMOBEER, BT
RSBz 2E;
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ZRESHABREABBERETZT=@
A AEEROFEAUEIRER
BESETZEERRIERSEY-

such mandate to remain in effect for a period
of twelve months from the date of passing of
the renewal of the resolution or until the
revocation or variation of the mandate by a

special resolution of the holders of the Shares.

By Order of the Board AREEEW
Xu Zhen Dong FFiRE
Chairman FE

Beijing, the PRC, 30th March, 2001 FE-ER ZBE-FZAZ=Z1H

HaE:

Notes:

The H Share register of shareholders of the Company will
be closed from 28th April, 2001 to 29th May, 2001 (both
days inclusive), during which time no transfer of H Shares
will be effected. Any holder of Promoters’ Shares or H
Shares whose name appears on the register of members
of the Company at 4:00 p.m. on 27th April, 2001 will be
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

AORBR-ER-—FHAZ+NABEZ
EFR-FRA-TNE(BEERMA Y
EFHEHRROBFER-R-ZB2E-FW
BZ+LtBTHFNUBAEFHELTRES
MOBEARSIHRBRR SEHELHELR
EECHMcRREFASENE LRR-

2. Any holder of Promoters' Shares or H Shares entitled to AEEBEREIRBERHZIRREFASE
attend and vote at the AGM convened by the above notice PRELBREZBFEARIHRBRRGH
is entitled to appoint in writing one or more proxies to RUEEFRREET—RBLEEARKED
attend and vote at the AGM on his behalf. A proxy needs RERR-ZERRBARSAQIEREA
not be a holder of Promoters' Shares or H Shares of the BREHBRER-

Company.

3. A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed. In order to be BRI ERREAFASERZRERRE
valid, the proxy form together with the power of attorney EREBE - RERRZTRBERDREEZ
or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a BREIHMAREXH (NH) AL T|A
notarily certified copy of the power of attorney must be BEEZREEILT 4ERKRREBEFASE
delivered to the Company's H Share Registrar, Hong Kong SEEMHASEESETHE - T/
Registrars Limited at 2nd Floor, Vicewood Plaza, 199 Des FEFQRACHERBRABEEEREESE
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong not less than 24 hours HETREAROF MU AT EBEHPIOR
before the time appointed for holding the AGM or any BRBEME - FARENR-
adjournment thereof.

4. Holders of Promoters' Shares or H Shares who intend to EREHERRBERSZHEARIHR

attend the AGM should complete the enclosed reply slip
for the AGM and return it to the Company's H Share
Registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at 2nd Floor,
Viewood Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
on or before Tuesday, 8th May, 2001. The reply slip may
be delivered by hand, by post or by fax to the number
(852) 2579-0095.
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